Agenda
Im“ Planning Board
VIRTUAL MEETING

ROl@SVllle Monday, March 22, 2021

7:00 PM

PLEASE NOTE:

Persons who wish to comment on an agenda item may do so by submitting the
Cognito form via the link provided by Monday, March 22, 2021, at 3:00 PM.
https://www.cognitoforms.com/TownOfRolesville/townofrolesvillepubliccommentsub
missionform. Submitted comments will be delivered to the Planning Board members
before the meeting for review.

If you wish to join us via Youtube to watch a live broadcast of our meeting, please
click here: https://www.youtube.com/user/townofrolesville

ITEM TOPIC
1. Call to Order
m Approve the March 15, 2021, Planning Board meeting minutes
Community Transportation Plan (CTP) Review
4 Planning Director's Report

a. Development Activity Report

5. Town Attorney's Report
6. Other Business
7. Adjournment

The Town of Rolesville is committed to providing accessible facilities, programs and services for
all people in compliance with the American with Disabilities Act. Should you need assistance or
a particular accommodation for this meeting please contact the ADA Coordinator.


https://www.cognitoforms.com/TownOfRolesville/townofrolesvillepubliccommentsubmissionform
https://www.cognitoforms.com/TownOfRolesville/townofrolesvillepubliccommentsubmissionform
https://www.youtube.com/user/townofrolesville

Rol

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

ITEM
1.

Planning Board Virtual Meeting
‘a‘ March 15, 2021 — 7:00 PM

11 502 Southtown Circle, Rolesville, NC
eS v1iiie 27571
Minutes
Chairman Mark Powers Co-Chairman Mike Moss
Board Member Frank Pearce Board Member Donnie Lawrence
Board Member Jim Schwartz Board Member Davion Cross
Commissioner Michelle Medley, Planning Director Danny Johnson
Planning Board Liaison Planner Il Julie Spriggs
Planning D.S. Shelly Raby FLM, Jon Frazier

FLM, Jim Allen
Board Member Renorda Pryor

TOPIC

Call to Order

Chairman Powers called the virtual meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. and took a roll
call of those present.

Approve January 25, 2021, Planning Board meeting minutes

Moved by Board Member Pearce to approve the minutes of January 25, 2021,
seconded by Board Member Mike Moss. Motion carried by unanimous roll-call
vote.

MA 20-04, 2005 and 2033 Wait Avenue Proposed Zoning: Residential R3-CZ

Julie Spriggs, Planner Il

Ms. Spriggs introduced the map amendment MA20-04 for the rezoning of 12.43 acres
of property located at 2005 and 2033 Wait Avenue. Providing maps on-screen, Ms.
Spriggs outlined the property being considered.

Jon Frazier, FLM

Mr. Frazier noted during the neighborhood meeting held on February 11, 2021, the

concerns raised will be addressed with the self-imposed conditions below:

1. Add a 6-foot opaque fence

2. Start construction and blasting at or after 8:00 am (an hour later than required in
Rolesville’s UDO).

3. Work with DOT regarding left-turn lanes, and WC Stormwater for drainage

4. Easement protection, compliance with WEMC

Board Member Lawrence asked for clarification on the access points for emergency
concerns. Mr. Frazier replied the current plan is to provide 2 means of egress and exit.

Chairperson Powers asked Ms. Spriggs about transportation. Ms. Spriggs noted the
current 2002 thoroughfare plan call for a four-lane narrow median road. The CTP



review starting next week has a four-lane narrow road with curb and gutter with side
path. The TRC review will determine which they will have to adhere to.

There being no further discussion it was moved by Board Member Pearce to
recommend the Town Board of Commissioners approval of Map Amendment 20-
04 to rezone parcels identified at 2005 and 2033 Wait Avenue from Wake County
HD zoning to the town of Rolesville R-1ll CZ district and amend the towns
comprehensive plan and amend the future land use map to identify this area as
medium density residential consistent with the surrounding land use. The
petition is reasonable and in the public interest; important to note if the town
board approves the voluntary annexation, this application is for a voluntary
annexation request, not a forced annexation. The motion was seconded by
Board Member Schwartz and carried by unanimous roll call vote.

4, Planning Director's Report

a. Planning Director Danny Johnson reported the zoning map amendment for the
town center and the text amendment to change the special use districts on the
official zoning map and relabeled to conditional zoning as a result of the new
requirements in 160D has also been approved by the town board
commissioners.

b. Mr. Johnson reminded those present that the Development Activity Report
was included in the agenda packet.

5. Town Attorney's Report
a. Town Attorney Neill asked the board to please keep sending comments for the draft
LDO to help Ms. Spriggs. The North Carolina Municipal Attorney’s Association and the
League of Municipalities are in discussions with the General Assembly regarding
electronic meeting requirements.

6. Other Business
Ms. Spriggs along with the collective board wished Mr. Johnson well in his pending
retirement.

7. Adjournment

There being no further business before the board, it was moved by Board Member
Lawrence to adjourn; seconded by Board Member Schwartz. Motion to adjourn carried
by unanimous roll call vote. The meeting adjourned at 7:48 p.m.

Mark Powers, Chairman

PBMinutes 20210315 Page 213

The Town of Rolesville will make reasonable accommodations for access to Town services, programs, and activities and will make
special communication arrangements for persons with disabilities. Please call (919) 556-3506 by noon on the Thursday prior to the
meeting to make arrangements.

Feturn to Agenda




Rolesville

Memo

To: Rolesville Planning Board
From: Julie Spriggs, GISP, CFM, CZO
Date: March 18, 2021

Re: Item 3 Rolesville Moves Community Transportation Plan (CTP)

Item 3

Rolesville Moves Community Transportation Plan (CTP)

A targeted consultant study and recommendations on key topics such as
recommendations supporting the future highway, pedestrian, bicycle, and transit
operations, including land use integration, controlled access management appropriate
for mobility in the region, and collector street connectivity.

Summary Information

The Rolesville Moves Community Transportation Plan (CTP) is a community driven
effort that identifies transportation needs and recommendations for multimodal facilities.
The plan provides the framework for creating a holistic transportation network and
accessible community for the Town of Rolesville.

The development of the Rolesville Moves CTP began in the winter of 2020. The
analysis of the existing conditions and development of the project framework were
initiated by understanding the existing and future travel conditions, identifying the
current and future land uses, creating guiding statements, and reviewing previously
completed plans and studies. Following the completion of the existing conditions
analysis, multimodal recommendations were developed. High-level cost estimates were
generated and projects were prioritized using a methodology that leveraged qualitative
and quantitative data. There were two major community outreach touch points during
the planning process. The first survey was open from May to June 2020 and focused on
the Rolesville Moves vision and goals. The second survey was open from January to
February 2021 and focused on the draft recommendations.



Public Comments

Public comments may be submitted via our online submission form. Comments will be
closed at 3 PM on Monday, March 22, 2021. Submitted comments will be compiled and
sent to the board members via email or printed and hand-delivered before the virtual
meeting for inclusion in your decision-making process. A summary of comments received
will be provided during the staff presentation. Comments will not be read aloud into the
record.

Planning Staff Recommendation

Staff finds the request reasonable and in the public interest, as it provides a vision for
transportation recommendations that considers existing and future needs for all travel
modes, the plan will help the Town of Rolesville continue to effectively address its
transportation needs both now and into the future, and recommends approval of the
Rolesville Moves Community Transportation Plan Update 2021.

Suggested Motion: | move we recommend approval of the Rolesville Moves Community
Transportation Plan Update 2021 to the Town Board of Commissioners as the request
reasonable and in the public interest, as it provides a vision for transportation
recommendations that considers existing and future needs for all travel modes, the plan
will help the Town of Rolesville continue to effectively address its transportation needs
both now and into the future, and recommends approval of the Rolesville Moves
Community Transportation Plan Update 2021.

Attachments
Rolesville Moves Community Transportation Plan Update 2021



Community Transportation Plan Update

Role svﬂle

Genuine Community ¢ Capital Connection
Est. 1837



Town of Rolesville

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Thank you to the local residents, community leaders, and government staff that participated in the development of
this plan through meetings, workshops, comment forms, and plan review. Special thanks to those who participated
as Steering Committee members, listed below.

STEERING COMMITTEE

Kelly Arnold | Town of Rolesville
Danny Johnson | Town of Rolesville
Julie Spriggs | Town of Rolesville
Mical McFarland | Town of Rolesville
Issac Poelman | Town of Rolesville
JG Ferguson | Town of Rolesville
David Walker | City of Raleigh

Tim Gardiner | Wake County
Michael Wheeler | NCDOT

Shelby Powell | CAMPO

Jerry Jensen | Citizen

Kimley»Horn

2



Community Transportation Plan

TABLE OF CONTENTS
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 5
CHAPTER 1: INTRODUCTION 15
CHAPTER 2: EXISTING CONDITIONS 23
CHAPTER 3: CONTEXT SENSITIVE STREET DESIGN 61
CHAPTER 4: RECOMMENDATIONS 73
CHAPTER 5: THE FUTURE NETWORK VISUALIZED 91
CHAPTER 6: PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 97
APPENDIX 107

A: PUBLIC SURVEY 1
B: PUBLIC SURVEY 2

C: PROJECT SHEETS






Community Transportation PIN

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY




Town of Rolesville °

Overview

The Rolesville Moves Community Transportation Plan (CTP) is a community driven effort that identifies
transportation needs and recommendations for multimodal facilities. The plan provides the framework for creating a
holistic transportation network and accessible community for the Town of Rolesville.

The development of the Rolesville Moves CTP began in the winter of 2020. The analysis of the existing

conditions and development of the project framework were initiated by understanding the existing and future
travel conditions, identifying the current and future land uses, creating guiding statements, and reviewing
previously completed plans and studies. Following the completion of the existing conditions analysis, multimodal
recommendations were developed. High-level cost estimates were generated and projects were prioritized using a
methodology that leveraged qualitative and quantitative data. There were two major community outreach touch
points during the planning process. The first survey was open from May to June 2020 and focused on the Rolesville
Moves vision and goals. The second survey was open from January to February 2021 and focused on the draft
recommendations.

EXISTING CONDITIONS MULTIMODAL NEEDS AND
AND FRAMEWORK RECOMMENDATIONS DEVELOPMENT IRTTINE SUCEESE ADOPTION

Travel
Conditions
Cost
Estimates
: : CTP
Adoption

Needs - Y Plan m Project ACTION ) ,
Integration Evaluation PLAN Final Reporting
PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT

: : - " Responsible
Party
Previous Guiding
Plans Statements
The findings and analysis are documented in the body of this plan.

Existing Conditions

The existing conditions aim to provide a glimpse of the current system related to safety and mobility within

the Town of Rolesville. The analysis provides the framework for Town Staff to identify and prioritize mobility
recommendations as priorities evolve or shift overtime. The existing conditions section provides an overview of
the current demographics, summarizes the current mobility network, and reviews the previous plans that helped to
inform the development of Rolesville Moves CTP.

At a Glance

The Town of Rolesville is one of the fastest growing towns in North Carolina. Between 2017 and 2018, the growth
rate of the population was approximately 10.3%. The Town's fast-growing population needs a reliable transportation
network to travel to work, school, and recreation opportunities.

32 6 minutes is the average commute time of residents in Rolesville
L]

2’752 people commute out of Rolesville to go to work

80.4% of commuters drive alone to work
6



Community Transportation Plan

Context Sensitive Street Design

One crucial step towards ensuring context sensitive street design is by emphasizing the importance of complete
streets. Rolesville Moves CTP includes a strategy that links land use and transportation recommendations. The
strategy includes two parts: a set of mobility principles based on consolidated land use context areas and a land use
and transportation map that overlays transportation recommendations and context areas.

Town Core \ pEa
;.\-.. y Y \/\
St WATAVE e T A\ \
. ( LS i — / \ \
; I\
Mixed Use . Ndo | I\ :
H i TN \
! i )
l.._..,l_> E? | )
. . H 4 \
Residential J' & \
- . >
A 0 : : N
\; ! % /;/\.\J'o 0, j . \
b N e N

l: JONES DAIRY RD EXT

Employment Center

Rural Crossroads

Open Space

2] | TN L
f ;,{/‘ o L / -
= 27 JEmm =] /
S Y\ ~E. X
g [ ] in 4 s 7\ {
1 S~ / A\
- =] ‘e p— Y ) -
f—— et g/ \
! 2 3 / 7
1 \ ! . a 4
)~ B\ O Bl L. D iy —
1 T
J I U = e A — e
‘ \ 20§
MITCHELL MILL RD / | £ iy »
4 4

The land use characteristics categories shown are based—in part—on the Future Land Use Map. The Town recently
participated in a regional land use planning exercise designed to streamline land use inputs into the region’'s travel
demand model for the 2050 CAMPO Metropolitan Transportation Plan. The land use characteristic categories
combine and consolidate CommunityViz and the Town of Rolesville's Future Land Use Map to provide consistent
terminology for land uses that occur throughout the region. A set of mobility principles compliment each of the six

land use context areas.

Upon adoption of the Rolesville Moves CTP, the Town will further explore options for a commercial and/or
employment corridor along the southern side of the US 401 BYP (Lousiburg Road).



Town of Rolesville °

Recommendations

The on-street roadway recommendations for Rolesville Moves CTP were developed from a process that considered
previous planning efforts, environmental considerations, safety and congestion data, existing and planned land
uses, projected travel demand, existing and committed projects, and feedback from the public. The proposed
recommendations leverage existing connections and create strategic links throughout the Town of Rolesville.

The Rolesville Moves CTP recommendations are divided into three basic categories:

Thoroughfare Recommendations

The thoroughfare recommendations are intended to alleviate and address future congestion by adding capacity,
access management enhancements, or providing alternative routes. Recommendations are intended to address
the congestion and safety concerns across the transportation network. Thoroughfare recommendations were
intentionally developed to include multimodal features such as bicycle and pedestrian facilities. The development
of active, sustainable mobility was a key theme during public outreach and plan development. A successful
transportation system aims to identify creative means of expanding vehicular capacity while incorporating
opportunities for alternative modes of transportation.

Collector Recommendations

Connecting and enhancing the Town's network of collector streets will improve the distribution of traffic throughout
the local network. A disconnected roadway system exacerbates traffic issues and increases travel times. A key goal
of this collector street network includes improving accessibility for residents while minimizing impacts to the natural
environment. A properly implemented plan will provide sustainable accessibility to activity and recreation centers.
Both local and through-traffic will benefit from the reduced reliance on thoroughfares and enhanced multimodal
transportation options.

While the connection points of proposed collector streets are important to facilitate overall network connectivity,
the alignments of these proposed collectors are flexible and can be modified to accommodate development.

Intersection Recommendations

The recommendations for the future system include improvements to critical or new intersections and interchanges.
These locations were identified to alleviate operational deficiencies and safety concerns. To preserve mobility and
enhance the overall efficiency of the transportation network, it is crucial to develop a collection of best practices to
allow the Town to respond to changing development pressures. Rather than specific project recommendations, these
best practices provide the ability to remain flexible while incorporating evidence-based planning procedures to make
the best planning decisions for the Town's future. These best practices include intersection improvements and access
management and connectivity best practices.



® Community Transportation Plan

The Future Network Visualized

Two corridors were identified for further study. These projects included the new Jones Dairy Road Extension and
Young Street/Rolesville Road/Averette Road between NC 98 (Wait Avenue) and Mitchell Mill Road.

Jones Dairy Road Extension

As part of Rolesville Moves CTP, two alternatives for the Jones Dairy Road extension were considered. As a high
priority connection between Main Street and Averette Road, understanding the surrounding environmental
constraints as well as traffic needs are crucial to identifying a preferred alignment. The challenges associated
with the two alternatives do not differ significantly. After several conversations between the site developer and
Town staff in addition to a desktop review of site conditions, the Town's preferred alternative is the eastern most
alignment. Key next steps should include a full wetland delineation, which will aid the Town in making a more
informed decision about the preferred alignment.

Young Street/Rolesville Road/Averette Road

Young Street is a critical link in helping the Town of Rolesville create a true town center and maintaining a sense of
place. While traffic volumes on Young Street are growing, the Town's efforts will focus on promoting a bikeable and
walkable Town Center, rather than widening to accommodate more vehicular traffic. The current two-lane corridor
includes fragmented sidewalk connections and lacks safe accommodations for bicyclists. General improvements
including repaving and restriping could enhance the north-south travel and provide safer conditions for multimodal
traffic. In addition, access management enhancements would improve safety, better sidewalk connections would
encourage walkability, and streetscaping would enhance this corridor through downtown Rolesville.

Project Implementation Plan

The success of the Rolesville Moves CTP will hinge on the ability of local, regional, and state officials to effectively
and efficiently collaborate on the implementation of both projects and policies. The completion of this plan will be
the preliminary step in implementing a multimodal network that affects mobility, safety, development patterns,
and the aesthetic character of the Town of Rolesville. The majority of the recommendations in this CTP will need
to undergo additional evaluation prior to implementation. There are typically four steps in the general project
development process.

Transportation Planning (Identify need)

Planning Studies, Preliminary Engineering, and
Environmental Review (Identify specific solution)

Final Design (Develop design plan and specifications)

Construction (Deliver project) D 1 D [




Town of Rolesville

Project Prioritization

The Rolesville Moves CTP included a prioritization assessment for roadway projects to assist Town staff with
identifying how to best allocate future funding. The prioritization includes a blend of quantitative and qualitative
metrics. The metrics used were developed using feedback received from Town staff, the plan’s Steering Committee,
public input, CAMPQO, and NCDQOT. The prioritization methodology can be found in the table below. Intersection
recommendations were not prioritized and should be implemented on an as-needed basis. Once prioritization
metrics were identified, weighting values were determined for each of the metrics. These weighting values were
based on input from the public, Town staff, and the Steering Committee. This prioritization process helped identify
near-, mid-, and long-term priority projects.

Evaluation Criteria Score Weight

Project received a score of 1 if they are included in a previous or adopted plan. Projects 5%

Previous Plan that have not been included in a previous or adopted plan will receive of score of 0.

NCDOT Planning Level Section Safety Scoring Data was utilized to identify project

Crash History areas with high scores, which are considered to have poor safety performance. 15%
The existing volume-to-capacity(V/C) ratio for each project was scaled using the
Existing V/C Ratio Triangle Regional Model. Projects that were highly congested received the highest 15%

scores.

Each project was scored based on the V/C reduction from the model’s base year (2013)
V/C Reduction to the horizon year (2045). Future year V/C was obtained from a future year build-out 10%
model. Projects with the highest reduction were scored highly.

Projects receive a high score if they accommodate both bicyclists and pedestrians.
Bicycle & Pedestrian Projects receive a moderate score if they accommodate only one mode of active 15%
transportation.

Projects receive points if the roadway has been identified in the Joint Rolesville-
Transit Wake Forest Transit Study as a potential transit corridor. In addition, existing transit 10%
connections also receive points.

Critical connections serve or provide new linkages for schools, emergency services,
Critical Connections community facilities, and potential activity centers. Projects classified as a critical 20%
connection receive a higher score.

The prioritization criteria outlined this methodology are structured to reflect values of
Value/Cost the project’s implementation. The total value score was obtained through the process

was divided by the estimated project cost. The project with the top value/cost received
the highest score with other projects received a relative score.

10%

The intent of the prioritization process is to provide the Rolesville Board of Commissioners, the Rolesville Planning
Board, and Town staff with a tool to use in decision making. The findings from this prioritization exercise can be
used to guide communication with agency partners or members of the general public. The prioritization findings
should also adapt to the circumstances of a growing community such as Rolesville. As new development is being
considered within the study area, the prioritization order may need to be revisited to best accommodate emerging
areas of growth.

10



Roadway Prioritization Results

The table below reflects the near-, mid-, and long-term priorities for roadway recommendations in the Rolesville
Moves CTP. Plan corridor prioritization results can be used as a tool by the Town when establishing the annual
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) list. Since this plan is not financially constrained, there are no specific time periods
associated with each prioritization grouping. The Town should pursue these improvements opportunistically to help

Community Transportation Plan

keep pace with the emerging or shifting needs of Rolesville. Within each grouping, projects are not listed in a specific

order.

Near-term
(0-10 years)

*S Main St (Burlington Mill Rd Realignment to Young St)

Rogers Rd (US 401 BUS (Main St) to Granite Falls Blvd)

S Main St (US 401 BUS) US 401 BYP (Louisburg Rd) to Burlington Mill Rd Realignment

Rogers Rd (Granite Falls Blvd to Western Study Area Limits)

Granite Falls Blvd Ext (Grand Rock Way to Burlington Mill Rd Realignment)

Averette Rd/Young St/Rolesville Rd (Jones Dairy Rd to Fowler Rd)

Burlington Mills Rd (Burlington Mill Rd Realignment to Forestville Rd)

*Burlington Mills Rd Realignment (Burlington Mill Rd to US 401 BUS (S Main St))

N Main St (Young St to US 401 (Louisburg Rd))

Mid-term
(10-20 years)

Granite Falls Blvd (Terrell Dr to Grand Rock Way)

Forestville Rd (Foxwild Ln to Lillies Liles Rd)

Averette Rd to (Jones Dairy Rd to NC 98 (Wait Ave))

Rolesville Rd (Fowler Rd to Mitchell Mill Rd)

Jones Dairy Rd (Averette Rd to Northwestern Study Area Limits)

Jones Dairy Rd Ext (Jones Dairy Rd/Averette Rd to US 401 BUS (Main St)/Pulley Town Rd)

Fowler Rd (Rolesville Rd to Mitchell Mills Rd)

*US 401 (Louisburg Rd) (NC 96 (Zebulon Rd) to Northern Study Area Limits)

Folwer Rd Ext (US 401 BYP (Louisburg Rd)/US 401 BUS (Main St) to Rolesville Rd)

Louisbury Rd (US 401 BYP (Louisburg Rd) to Southern Study Area Limits)

Long-term

(+20 years)

Jonesville Rd (US 401 BUS (Main St) to Mitchell Mill Rd)

Pulley Town Rd (US 401 BYP (Louisburg Rd) to US 401 BUS (N Main St)

Rolesville Rd/Riley Hill Rd (Mitchell Mill Rd to Riley Hill School Rd)

Mitchell Mill Rd (Rolesville Rd to Eastern Study Area Limits)

NC 98 (Wait Ave) (NC 96 (Zebulon Rd) to Western Study Area Limits)

Mitchell Mill Rd (Fowler Rd to Rolesville Rd)

Chalk Rd (Averette Rd to Western Study Area Limits)

*LAPP 2021 Project
**The existing cross section aligns with the recommended cross section

11



Town of Rolesville

Proposed Network

The proposed network combines thoroughfare, collector street, and intersection recommendations to provide a
glimpse at the future of mobility in and around the Town of Rolesville. With a variety of multimodal facilities,

the proposed network is friendly for all users. The multimodal provisions provide options for active modes of
transportation throughout and around the Town of Rolesville. The future of transportation will leverage surrounding

land uses and build off of new development or shifting land uses.

Legend

WAIT AVE Intersection Recommendations

® Access Management

® Intersection Improvement
e
EJ Intersection Realignment
g © °
<

® New Intersection

® Roundabout

Thoroughfare Recommendations

2 Lane Divided (Raised Median)
Sidewalk and Sidepath*

New Location 2 Lane Undivided with
Paved Shoulders and Sidewalk

2 Lane Undivided with Paved Shoulders
and Sidewalk

2 Lane Undivided with Curb & Gutter,
Bike Lanes, and Sidepath

2 Lane Divided (Raised Median) with
Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and Sidewalk

FORESTVILLE ppy
9
N
A
&

2 Lane with Two Way Left Turn Lane,
e CUrD & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and Sidewalks

2 Lane with Two Way Left Turn Lane,
Paved Shoulders, and Sidewalks

2 Lane with Two Way Left Turn Lane,
Curb & Gutter, Sidewalk, and Sidepath

4 Lane Divided (Raised Median -
Narrow) with Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes,
and Sidewalk**

® New 4 Lane Divided (Raised Median)
with Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and
Sidwalks

4 Lane Divided (Raised Median -
Narrow) with Curb & Gutter and
Sidewalk

4 Lane Divided (Raised Median) with
Curb & Gutter and Sidepath™*

FOWLER RD EXT

JONESVILLE Rp

Y

D
MITCHELL MILL R

4 Lane Divided (Depressed Median) with
Paved Shoulders

NOTES:

* The North Main St recommendation

'(from the Main Street Plan) should Collector Recommendations
include curb and gutter where
applicable (ideally outside of the
watershed near Young Street)

** Along Rogers Rd and Burlington Mill

Rd, Wake Forest plans for a sidepath .
along both sides of the roadway Proposed Connection
*** Due to the short length within

Rolesville's planning area, NC 98 and Study Area

Forestville Rd will include sidepath

along both sides for consistency

Existing Connection

12



® Community Transportation Plan

Conclusion

Implementing Rolesville Moves CTP will be an ongoing and iterative process that should be reevaluated on a regular
basis. Moving forward, key steps at the Town-wide level that will help advance the recommendations include the
following:

Update the CTP every five years to ensure the plan's recommendations and objectives remain relevant.
Finish the update of the Land Development Ordinance.

Amend the CTP once the new Open Space and Greenways Plan has been completed, as well as the Rolesville
Bicycle Plan Update.

Update the CTP annually to include new transportation network enhancements as they are identified in the
development review process.

The Rolesville Moves Community Transportation Plan provides a vision for transportation recommendations that
considers existing and future needs for all travel modes. The creation of this Action Plan helps staff and elected
officials advocate for projects that will have the greatest impact to the Town. The Town has many identified
transportation needs, and fully funding and implementing the recommendations will take a number of years. As
projects move forward into funding and implementation, the Town will need to work with the Capital Area MPO
and NCDOT to determine how best to advance recommended projects. The Town will also continue to monitor
emerging needs and changes in the way projects can be funded and implemented. Project priorities will be
reassessed through subsequent updates to this plan. This dynamic process will help the Town of Rolesville continue
to effectively address its transportation needs both now and into the future.







Community Transportation Plan‘

INTRODUCTION

15



Town of Rolesville °

Overview and Purpose

The Rolesville Moves Community Transportation Plan, or CTP, is a community driven effort that identifies
transportation needs and recommendations for motorists, bicyclists, pedestrians, transit, and freight. The plan
establishes a vision for the transportation network in Rolesville and identifies a set of projects, policies, and actions
that will allow for incremental progress toward that vision. This CTP provides the model for creating an accessible,
multimodal community for everyone in Rolesville.

Transportation is an important part of our daily life in Rolesville. It affects how we move through the area and

how we experience our Town. A lot has changed since the adoption of the 2002 Thoroughfare Plan. The Town of
Rolesville is a growing North Carolina community that has the benefit of having both small town charm and the
access to amenities that city life offers by being just a short drive away from Raleigh. With an increasing population
and a desire for an accessible and connected transportation network, this plan establishes Rolesville's local vision for
the community today and plans for the community in the future.

This document is a powerful advocacy tool as Town staff seek to communicate local priorities to regional partners,
including staff and elected officials, private developers, the Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization
(CAMPQ), the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT), and the public.

Planning Process

This planning process included four key phases: Existing Conditions and Framework, Multimodal Needs and
Recommendations Development, Inviting Success, and Adoption. The Plan used existing data and public input
to help build the foundation for coordinated recommendations. The process for this plan followed four pillars of
planning philosophy:

+ Make better places by creating more transportation options

- Value the voices of strategic stakeholders and local residents

< Use current plans as a starting point for future strategies

- Create solutions customized to fit the needs of our community

EXISTING CONDITIONS MULTIMODAL NEEDS AND
AND FRAMEWORK RECOMMENDATIONS DEVELOPMENT

Travel
Conditions
Lo0° S, Cost
. . Estimates
. . Needs 5 o Plan 'R Project ACTION - 5 CTP
: Integration Evaluation PLAN AEIREFAHE Adoption

INVITING SUCCESS ADOPTION

Responsible
Party
Previous Guiding

Plans Statements Bicycle & Pedestrian

PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT

16



o Community Transportation Plan

Vision and Goals

To make the Rolesville Moves CTP successful for the community, it was imperative to develop a vision and set of
guiding statements that are consistent with the needs of the residents of Rolesville. The vision and goals were
established through public input and guidance from the Steering Committee, and inspired by the transportation
element of the Rolesville Comprehensive Plan. The established vision and goals permeate throughout the document
to ensure that all analysis and recommendations relate back to these critical elements.

Vision
“To enhance and improve Rolesville's transportation network
by identifying needs and creating accessible mobility options
for all users.”

Goals

Safe & Secure

Improve the safety of the transportation system by providing secure facilities for all mode
users

Accessible & Connected

Provide a well connected transportation network that enhances access to key destinations
within the Town of Rolesville and throughout the region

Active & Multimodal

Provide mode choices by expanding the transportation network to include more
opportunities for bicyclists, pedestrians, transit users, and vehicular users

Efficient & Enhanced

Preserve the existing transportation network through targeted recommendations that
maximize benefits while minimizing costs

17



Town of Rolesville

Public Engagement

Public input was vital to this planning process in order to create a plan that is designed to provide the residents of
Rolesville with the transportation improvements that fit their needs. The approach to gathering community input

included the guidance of a community-based Steering Committee, two public surveys, and an online presence that
was vital to keeping Rolesville residents informed about the plan as it progressed and developed.

Steering Committee
A Steering Committee was formed to guide the planning process and was consulted regularly throughout plan
development. The members of the Steering Committee included Rolesville Town staff, NCDOT, CAMPO, Wake County,

City of Raleigh, and a Town resident. The committee guided the direction of the plan through direct feedback on
plan recommendations and assisted in guiding community outreach efforts.

Online Presence and Social Media Campaign

The project webpage housed on the Town of Rolesville's
website was crucial to keeping the public up-to-date on
the development of Rolesville Moves CTP. The webpage
included a project presentation to introduce people to
the CTP, an ongoing schedule that informed people about
the timeline, and links to vital documents for review. The
webpage also included a project newsletter which was
released every two months and updated the public on
announcements and upcoming events, behind the scenes
information on the project, and key takeaways from the
analysis and recommendations development process. This

DRaFTR
ECommgy,
Aot "ENDATIONS

online presence was especially vital to keep the community « AMNOUNGE, 25y 2 corcng
) . . MENTS TON O Roisayre. o 00 Withiy VST posenteg 4 Pendition,
= - ‘e The docy Nty 7, ey 2 SeeSting ¢ =
involved. Since the plan development took place during D o ity o oy TSt i T oS
. . . \"&?tmgk, rission o 10US plang 3 Planng ious.
COVID-19 pandemic when in-person gathering was not e e e s L Wi
i ,:Dm . August 5. uiding o m"’:“‘ﬂwmmap, [ Orliinary
pOssl ble. . ©:000m ta 8.0, oMMty Ty rssten ot :;;waedme:a%,;;e;”“mdmm
. tan (CTy ONMinty Popuy
%T::ies ieam o Key Takeayays, Consiraingy m;‘“:;:a - %;“”
D6 DO g focreaie 5 Popuy, . Folesu Sirvey, ) mrc suTrvewW The
0 Wil o g i ) O You O 0 e TS o O e g S ety
e Toun oy, Scussion sboy b i 7 the state o mmﬁ bions, ,tc " informn i
* Leam ' * Commuste, 1y, St g g PR o
mors Commte, e gy
is 200t e o3, 1 iy Ry mﬁxmﬂm e Ko Takeaygy,,
) Hmz% se”e“""'”u“eabngm,;fes“a .N,%
e the G
Lrograss 202 Commyze ® Mo mtimogs
T 26 gz, T ee s nciuci;
Gepathy NG Sidiey
:’XA‘VWM?‘EB g in rea-ime Educatiop, The. - . 3 bicyle f3neg .
s New? Pars ot e pan-IOITES date ! Percentage eteng
« plan Up CONVisgersy 5 who of o ong
€20 Ccommunity Transportation network, including S voa:v Can\ holesvie S 0 3 e g 20001 F’:.:ghwedmdonasm::am
ille Moves | CO -« transportation le area for the tfoin g a7s, ) degras iy FRoact aryy Foar,
Rolesville ove the Town's t ions in the Rolesvi 9N Augugt 555 > Which js s p, oung Bllh;emm%
strategies 1o IMPIOY <portation decisio OIG g 24 i) e g Here's :
will offer uide transp Postey amost 10s, 1 {0l et
ork t0 9 Megmemwh % Nigher thsry Particingy, 9 us! gsgg
Q/Dlma_

sville Moves o oo
Rgs'\ces The result will beafra
E

leted
to be comp!
pisscneduled 0B T )

MOVES

LE
LESVIL '
° ° Y Transporla(\on Plan Update

Communit

pwillt

+ decisions from the €T R, Mmoo O

d of 2020,and relevant Wilenc, qoyy
Rrogragy s

e en ¢
o t‘; the Town Board in January:
The CT! B

See the (IR PLOIE

Report a Concer”
Employment
Staff Directory

Hall .
w“ Solid Waste Services

Rolesville TO

thtown Circle

18



o Community Transportation Plan

Public Survey #1: Needs Identification and Visioning

During the initial stages of the project, an online survey was used to gather public input. The purpose of the survey
was to establish a vision for the transportation system and to identify needs and deficiencies. The survey was open
for over a month from May to June, 2020. Vital feedback from the survey is summarized here and the full survey
results are included in the Appendix.

Participants were asked to provide input on changes to the transportation system over the last five years.

50% of participants believe the transportation system has improved
3 O% of participants believe the transportation system has stayed the same

20% of participants believe the transportation system has worsened

The question results reflect the considerable work the Town of Rolesville has already conducted on the
transportation system over the past several years by securing grant funding and partnering with NCDOT.

When asked how tax dollars should be spent on transportation in Rolesville, survey participants identified the follow
transportation investments as "essential” or "very important”

73% 69%

/lli‘\ d

Maintenance of
existing infrastructure

New sidewalks and/or
crosswalks

Enhance streetscapes

When asked to rate each of the following transportation modes, survey participants noted that ease of single-
vehicle access is overall better than active modes of transportation (bicycling or walking) and public transportation.

. Poor . Fair . Good . Excellent

1o 3% 42% 45% 10%
Public
Transportation 23% 48% 23% 6%
Bicycle 19% 48% 26% 6%
Walking 48% 23% 19% 10%
Public Parking 10% 48% 42%




Town of Rolesville °

Public Survey #2: Recommendations Review

Following the development of recommendations, a feedback opportunity was made available to the public between
January and February of 2021. A narrated presentation providing an update on plan progress and a packet of maps
and tables showing recommended projects was made available on the project webpage. In addition to a public
survey that focused on thoroughfare, collector, and intersection recommendations, public “office hours” times were
advertised on the Town's website. Interested participants were welcomed to discuss the plan's recommendations
with Town staff and the consultant team. Vital feedback from the survey is summarized here and the full survey
results are included in the Appendix.

< C @& rolesvillenc.gov/planning/whats-new-plans-progress w B e
— I X
Home » Departments » Planning »
Planning
' L]
Adopted Plans What's New? Plans in Progress
Building Permits
Development Weigh in on Rolesville's Cornmunity Transportation Plan!
Projects The Town of Rolesville will be holding virtual engagement sessions on Tuesday, January 26th and Thursday, January 28th

Forms and as part of the Rolesville Moves Community Transportation Plan to review recommendations for the Town's
transportation future. The plan identifies needs and priorities for automobiles, bicycles, pedestrians, and transit in

Applications Rolesville over the next 25 years.

Lan(.j Use and The January engagement sessions will provide community members the opportunity to interact with the project team,
Zoning learn about the planning process, and provide feedback on the draft recommendations. Please review this packet of
information in advance of the sessions.

Signs

Unied « Join the January 26 session from 12:00 noon to 1:00 pm here: https:/kimley-horn.zoom.us/j/7706782177
Development + Join the January 28 session from 6:30 pm to 7:30 pm here: https:/kimley-horn.zoom.us/j/7706782177
Ordinance

= : An online survey is also available to gather your feedback. Please complete the survey and
Utility Permits share your thoughts here: https:/www.surveymonkey.com/r/RolesvilleMovesCTP

What's New? Plans

of participants believe that the proposed intersection recommendations definitely or probably
80% would address the future needs of Rolesville.

of participants believe that the proposed thoroughfare recommendations definitely or probably
76% would address the future needs of Rolesville.

2 of participants believe that the proposed collector street recommendations definitely or probably
7 % would address the future needs of Rolesville.

Open-Ended Responses

< "The Mitchell Mill [Road and] Rolesville Rd intersection has always been a nightmare so a realignment would be
great!

- "l don't think there are any intersection problems in Rolesville right now.”
+ [Rogers Road] needs traffic calming, with turn lanes into neighborhoods..”
- "Love the 4-lane planning for Burlington Mills [Road], Rogers Road, and Mitchell Mill [Road] in particular”

- "Excited that [collector street recommendation] might help alleviate some pressure from our main roads.”

20



it

e g

G )

| U e e )

! T2 OO |

i
__“_n_.. i






Community Transportation PIN

EXISTING CONDITIONS

23



Town of Rolesville

24

Introduction

The Rolesville Moves Community Transportation

Plan serves as an update of its 2002 Community
Transportation Plan. Since 2002, the Town has
experienced significant population growth. The initial
steps of the planning process serve a framework for
the planning process by exploring the current context
of the transportation network, environmental factors,
demographic shifts, and operational factors of the Town
in order to plan for long-term growth and development
over the next twenty-five years.

Purpose

The Existing Conditions section is intended to provide a
snapshot of the current conditions related to mobility
and safety within the Town of Rolesville. This section

is a preliminary step in the creation of the Community
Transportation Plan, which will act as the framework for
identifying and prioritizing current and future planning
decisions. The geographic information systems (GIS) data
within this document was provided by or obtained from
the Town of Rolesville, Wake County, the North Carolina
Department of Transportation (NCDOT), and the Capital
Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) unless
otherwise stated.

The Existing Conditions section contains the following
subjects as they relate to mobility, accessibility, and
safety in the Town of Rolesville:

- Demographics
- Mobility

« Previous Plan Review



Community Transportation Plan

Study Area

The Town of Rolesville is located in the northeastern portion of Wake County off of US 401. The Town is near the

City of Raleigh and the Towns of Wake Forest, Zebulon, Knightdale, and Wendell. Despite being close to several
large municipalities, Rolesville is also near several scenic recreation areas including the Heritage East Greenway,

the Sanford Creek Greenway, and the Mill Bridge Nature Park. The Town of Rolesville retains an intimate, rural
community feel while enjoying the proximity benefits of more densely populated areas.

Since the Town of Rolesville is one of the fastest growing towns in North Carolina, planning for the next twenty-five
years will be a crucial step towards guiding the direction of land development and the transportation network.

Figure 1 - Study Area
O] L

i
D ETJ Boundary

Open Space

School

Parcel

Water

i AVERE TTE RDpvemes

Wake Forest

oo—
1

Zebulon

Knightdale Wendell

Raleigh

Updated May 2020

25



Demographics and Travel Patterns

Understanding the demographic profile and traffic
patterns of the community are essential when considering
multimodal transportation in the Town of Rolesville. This
section utilizes the 2018 American Community Survey
(ACS) 5-year estimates from the U.S. Census Bureau to
analyze relevant data for the community. This data helps
to identify the needs of the community to appropriately
recommend projects for the Community Transportation
Plan.



o Community Transportation Plan

At a Glance

The Town of Rolesville is one of the oldest and fastest growing towns in North Carolina. The population of Rolesville
has risen significantly since 2000. The Town's fast growing population is well-educated and less than 5% of its
population lives below the poverty line. As the table below indicates, the Town of Rolesville has a slightly higher
minority population than the state of North Carolina. The Town's minority population is consistent with of Wake
County's minority population. The Town of Rolesville has a higher median income and longer average commute time
than both the county and state. Understanding the shifting demographics and economic profile will help establish
the baseline for future planning decisions.

: Town of .

Demographics Rolesville Wake County North Carolina
Population (2018) 8111 1,046,558 10,383,620
Percent Below
Poverty L evel 3.0% 8.4% 14.0%
Percent Minority 35.6% 35.9% 31.6%
Percent Over 65 9.9% 11.6% 16.3%
Median Household
Income $114,107 $79,970 $53,855
Average Commute
Time (minute s) 32.6 25.5 24.8

Commute to Work —

~ ~
Commuting IN / \ Commuting OUT

376 \ /7 2752

N
Stay and Work

Mode Split to Work

0OBOOO =

0% 0% 0% 139% 804%  5.1%

27



Town of Rolesville ®

tThe Toyvnﬂc])f RtolisviicleNis i)rr:ecof tlhe fa_lx_sr;tes_l’_t growing Between 2017 and
owns in the state of North Carolina. The Town grew

8% faster than Wake County and North Carolina 2018' the gl‘OWth rate
combined in 2018 alone. was 10.3%.

12.0%

10.0%

8.0%

6.0%

4.0%

2.0% —

0.0%
20M 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

e==Rolesville  emmm\\ake County  e===North Carolina

The percentage of Rolesville residents who received a
High School diploma or higher degree is around 97%, The Town of Rolesville

which is 5% higher than Wake County and almost :
10% higher than North Carolina. Approximately has a hlghly E’tducated
one third of Rolesville’s population has a bachelor’s populatlon.

degree.
35.0%

30.0%

25.0%

20.0%

15.0%

10.0%
i
0.0% .

No High High School Some College, Associate's  Bachelor's  Graduate or
School Graduate No Degree Degree Degree Professional
Diploma Degree

m Rolesville  m North Carolina

28



The radar graphs below show the direction of travel
from work to home and from home to work. From
work to home shows where Rolesville residents go to

for work. From home to work shows where people
who work in Rolesville live.

N
NW NE
40 E
80 120 140
200
SW SE
S
N
NW NE
200 E
400
600
800
1,000
SW SE
S

Community Transportation Plan

(

\_

predominantly travel

Work to Home.
Rolesville residents

southwest and west
for work.

J

== ess than 10 miles
—o=10 t0 24 miles
—g=25 to 50 miles

-—e=CGreater than 50 miles

Source: OntheMap 2017

Home to Work.
Workers of Rolesville
travel primarily from

the southwest.

—o=|ess than 10 miles
=o=10 t0 24 miles
—g=25 t0 50 miles

—g= Greater than 50 miles

Source: OntheMap 2017

29



Town of Rolesville °

Total Population

The figure below shows the population of Rolesville by census block group. The Town of Rolesville has seen dramatic
increases of population since 2010. The population increased from 3,289 people to 8,111 people between 2010 and
2018. The population in the Town is more concentrated on the west side where there are several large neighborhoods
including Villages of Rolesville, Granite Falls, Hampton Pointe, and Terrell Plantation.

In the surrounding area to the northeast, larger populations can be found living in between the Town of Rolesville
and the Town of Wake Forest.

Figure 2 - Population

-
i Town Boundary

Less than 1,000 D ETJ Boundary

J 1,000 - 1,500 Open Space
‘ I 1.500- 2,000 School
I 2.000- 2,500 Parcel
1 I 2500 - 3.000 Water

" “ - Greater than 3,000

Updated May 2020




o Community Transportation Plan

Population Density

The figure below shows the population density by census block group. The figure indicates that the population

is more heavily concentrated north of US 401. Similar to the distribution of population, the density is more
concentrated on the western portion of the Town. Even though the population may increase, the density will not
necessarily do so as most of the housing in Rolesville is single-family residential housing units. The Town may choose
to consider multi-family housing options as the population increases, which could increase the population density
and allow for more people to live in Rolesville.

S L 5 -

. g Legend

Population Density (persons per sq mile) im-"-i Town Boundary
Less than 200 [ en soundary

[ 200-300 Open Space

I 300- 1,000 school

I 1 .000- 2,500 Parcel

- Greater than 2,500 Water

Updated May 2020

31



Town of Rolesville ®

Race & Ethnicity

The minority population in the Town of Rolesville is approximately 35.6%. The largest minority group are African
Americans, who make up approximately 22.9% of the population. Asians make up 31% of the total population and
5.5% of the population identifies as two or more races. The total Hispanic population of any race in the Town is 5.2%,
41% of which identify as Mexican. Since 2010, the minority population has hovered around 30%, which is relatively
similar to both Wake County and the state of North Carolina.

The figure below shows the distribution of racial and ethnic minorities by census block groups below according to
the American Community Survey (ACS) 2018 estimations.

Figure 4 - Race and Ethnicity

| .

»/ﬂ//‘/ Legend
Less than 10% D ETJ Boundary
{  10%-20% ~ Openspace
\ ( [ 20%-30% ~ school
[ so%- 40% Parcel

I Greater than 40% Water

Percent Minority

/

pdated May 2020

F

32



o Community Transportation Plan

Commutes from Home to Work

Like the radar graph on page 29, the figure below shows the direction of travel from work to home. The majority of
Rolesville residents work between 10 to 24 miles away. The majority of these commuters travel west and southwest
for work. This indicates that most Rolesville residents work somewhere in Wake County, most likely Wake Forest or
Raleigh. There are approximately 4,000 commuters leaving Rolesville and the study area boundary to go to work.

Figure 5 - Home to Work
Legend

1 to 2 residents
2 to 8 residents
9 to 19 residents
20 to 40 residents

Greater than 41 residents

——

° 8‘/‘_—‘
“
o
)
N
o
(]
b .
iy
° ~ ZEBULOM
o o °
° KNIGHTDALE ° 3 /
o © ° ¥ ° ./
7; . ® ! . ° WENDELL
| o CARY g0, ° ° °
| o
e . o°
o o
(]
\\ ° °
o
o« APEX’ o, .
. ,
° o Q e o ° CLAYTON
° °
3 40, .
GARNER_ o
° o\* >, © °
o % ° Updated May 2020
HOLLY SPRINGS : ol EON o

33



Town of Rolesville

Commutes from Work to Home
The figure below shows where the people who work in Rolesville live. The largest number of people who work in
Rolesville live less than 10 miles away. Like the commuters from home to work, these commuters travel from the

southwest and west. Less than 1,500 commuters come into the Rolesville area to work.

Figure 6 - Work to Home
Legend
kéé‘ 'I’ 1 employee

1 to 3 employees

3to 6 employees

6 to 10 employees

: c @
o
- | »
° (] . 10 to 12 employees
°
(]

......

p—

®
L]
. ]
L]
8‘/""\
A e
150, . L
] 9. .
L]
° o
DURHAM ° 7 °
“oo .o 2 °¢ °
°® ._l__ °
........ o
L]
o
° .
®
° ° L] o
o \
MORRISVILLE -
\ ° *i °
. \ ) ./ ZEBULON
° ; b4 ! o 7
® . KNIGHTDALE o
3 \ <. '
s oo ° WENDELL
° ° ° o
° o
) - A
L]
e . ° ° . @ o
ra *
APEX
°
o . . CLAYTON
o GARNER °
é ° ‘ .
‘e . ° o Updated May 2020
. o o .
(] e

o
HOLLY SPRINGS  °

34



Mobility

The mobility section analyzes the current conditions
of the transportation network. This section aims to
provide the context that will shape and inform future
recommendations for the Community Transportation
Plan. The mobility section considers roadway, bicycle,

and pedestrian facilities in and around the Town of
Rolesville.



Town of Rolesville

Functional Classification

The functional classification system is defined by the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). The classification
system is used to designate characteristics of the roadways into general hierarchies that describe the relationship
between mobility and accessibility. Understanding the various roles that roadways play is crucial when considering
transportation recommendations as they should enhance land use designations and mobility throughout the study
area. There are two principal arterials that run through the Town of Rolesville. Those principal arterials are US 401
BUS (Main Street) and US 401 BYP (Louisburg Road). Both are supported by a network of minor arterials and major
collectors like Young Street, Jones Dairy Road, and Averette Road. The roadway functional classifications for NCDOT-
maintained roadways within the study area are shown below.

Figure 7 - Functional Classification
A

Legend

Functional Classification -: Town Boundary

— Interstate ] e 8oundary
— Freeway Open Space

= Principal Arterial School
Minor Arterial Parcel
Major Collector Water
—— Minor Collector

Local

Updated May 2020

36



® Community Transportation Plan

Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT) 2019

The two main corridors that run through the Town of Rolesville are US 401 BUS (Main Street) and US 401 BYP
(Louisburg Road), which have between 11,000 to 16,500 vehicles daily. Other major corridors with large volumes of
vehicular traffic include Young Street, Averette Road, and Jones Dairy Road. In 2018, Young Street had approximately
7900 vehicles daily, Averette Road had 3,300 vehicles per day, and Jones Diary Road had 5,000 vehicles per day.
Other highly traveled roads just outside of the study area boundary include Rogers Road with 9,800 vehicles per day
and NC 98 (Wait Avenue) with 15,000 vehicles per day.

Notably, AADT is available only for NCDOT-maintained roadways.
Figure 8 - Annual Average Daily Traffic 2019

Legend

Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT) : -: Town Boundary

) Less than 1,000 vpd ETJ Boundary
.! e Between 1,000 - 2,000 vpd D Open Space
2 Between 2,000 - 5,000 vpd school

;&‘:j e Between 5,000 - 10,000 vpd Parcel
éu Greater than 10,000 vpd Water

Updated May 2020
| |

37



Town of Rolesville

Existing Pavement Quality

The North Carolina Department of Transportation rates roadways on eight characteristics. These characteristics
include alligator cracking, traverse, rutting, raveling, oxidation and weathering, bleeding, ride quality, and patching.
While the principal arterials which carry the majority of traffic are in good condition, there are several roads in the
study area that are in poor condition. The roads with poor condition ratings are primarily in residential areas with
the one exception being Jonesville Road. Several roads are in fair condition including Jones Dairy Road, Burlington
Mills Road, and Chalk Road.

Notably, data for pavement quality is available only for NCDOT-maintained roadways.
Figure 9 - Existing Pavement Quality

Legend

-
i Town Boundary

Fair Condition : >=60 and <80 D ETJ Boundary

Poor Condition : < 60

Good Condition : >= 80 Open Space
School

Parcel

Water

Updated May 2020

38



® Community Transportation Plan

Existing Pavement Condition

In 2019, the Town of Rolesville completed a Pavement Condition Assessment. The report rated each street on
properties including pavement type, curb and gutter type as well as street width, asphalt distresses, alligator
cracking, and other distressed conditions. Pavement Condition Index (PCl) scores were generated and categorized
into seven categories. The assessment found that the average PCl rating in the Town of Rolesville was 89.78 out of

100, which is categorized as "Good.”

The figure below shows approximately 32 miles of the street network within the Town boundary.

Figure 10 - Existing Pavement Condition

Legend
Pavement Condition Index (PCI)
— Good 86-100
= Satisfactory 71-85
e FQlir 56-70

Poor 41-55

Very Poor 26-40
e Serious 11-25

e Fqiled 0-10

~ -
i i Town Boundary

D ETJ Boundary

Open Space
School
Parcel

Water

Updated May 2020

39



Town of Rolesville

Funded Projects

The figure below shows committed or funded projects that are currently planned in and around the Town of
Rolesville. The Highway Maintenance Improvement Program (HMIP) is a five-year maintenance plan that identifies
projects that include resurfacing, rehabilitation, and preservation. The largest projects in the surrounding area of
Rolesville are microsurfacing treatments on Pulley Town Road and Quarry Road for plan year 2020. The Town of
Rolesville will benefit from the HMIP projects in surrounding areas. Rolesville also has the Main Street Corridor
project funded through the Locally Administered Projects Program (LAPP). The project connects existing sidewalks
and greenways. There is one State Improvement Transportation Program (STIP) project for 2020-2029 in the study
area boundary at US 401 BUS (Main Street) and Burlington Mills Road.

Figure 11 - Funded Projects

40

H ‘n\/\-\ NCDOT HMIP 2022

) Legend

©®  STIP Division Highway ~NCDOT HMIP 2023

mmmma | APP 2021
NCDOT HMIP 2020
Preservation

Resurfacing

~""  Rehabllitation

NCDOT HMIP 2021
Preservation

Resurfacing

~"  Rehabilitation

Preservation
Resurfacing

Rehabilitation

Preservation

Resurfacing
~ 7 Rehabilitation
NCDOT HMIP 2024
Preservation
Resurfacing

Rehabilitation

::_-_-: Town Boundary
D ETJ Boundary
Open Space
School
Parcel
Water

Updated May 2020



Community Transportation Plan

HSIP

The Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) identifies safety concerns throughout the state. The program is
structured to identify locations that can be categorized as potentially hazardous (PH) locations. These locations are
then analyzed to see how effective treatment may reduce the number of traffic accidents, injuries, and fatalities
on certain roads and/or intersections. These projects are prioritized according to a benefit to cost ratio reduction

analysis. Once approved, these project become a part of the STIP.

The HSIP data is available from 2015 to 2019; however, the HSIP projects near or in the Town of Rolesville are from
2017 and 2019.
Figure 12 - Highway Safety Improvement Program

-
T} Legend
® 2017 HSP Intersection |

@® 2019 HSIP Intersection D ETJ Boundary

i
i' = 7019 HSIP Section Open Space
?‘ School
E
Y Parcel
-
< Water

it

.-
it
i

-

i '\_ ‘/’
'

-"‘

1
Main!S_treet‘ ',
o, US 401) at_ e
i ™, B(owling IZ:ri.vg
i
!
i
i
i
i 4
PN 7 4
v 0 T'-.\ _I',a'
! /’ 3 5
i ¥ ) a'{'..
i o <
’ (5 .v(.

Updated May 2020

41



Town of Rolesville

Topography

Topography is an important feature in the Town of Rolesville. The elevation contours are crucial when considering
both land development and transportation planning and engineering. The figure below shows the 50-foot
increments throughout the Town. Topography, in tandem with other environmental features, can present certain
developmental challenges. The figure shows higher elevations in the north; however, there are areas in the study
area where the elevation changes more rapidly to the east.

This topographic information was provided by Wake County.

Figure 13 - Topography

Elevation (in feet) :'--: Town Boundary

Less than 200 ft D ETJ Boundary

200 - 250 ft Open Space
250 - 300 ft School
s ——— 300 - 350 ft Parcel
& 350 - 400 ft Water

400 - 450 ft
450 - 500 ft

42



® Community Transportation Plan

Environmental Conditions

There are several environmental considerations that may impact growth and development around the Town of
Rolesville including floodplains and wetlands. Floodplains are the most prominent environmental feature and

the impact of 100-year flooding could have notable damage on property and infrastructure. Understanding how
environmental features impact the development and maintenance of facilities is crucial for transportation planning.
While the 100-year floodplain will have long-term impacts, the current footprint of wetlands has an immediate
impact on development and construction. Considering these features is an opportunity to balance environmental
stewardship and private-public development.

Figure 14 - Environmental Considerations

Y
Legend -|

~ -
E Floodplain i i Town Boundary

- Wetland D ETJ Boundary

Open Space

School
Parcel

Water

Updated May 2020

5



Town of Rolesville

Active Transportation

Since the Comprehensive Bicycle Plan was completed in 2013, the bicycle and pedestrian networks have

significantly expanded throughout and around the Town of Rolesville. The pedestrian facilities are well-connected
and concentrated primarily around residential areas. In addition to the expansive pedestrian network, there are
approximately 12 miles of bicycle facilities throughout the study area that include sharrows and bicycle lanes.
However, the most expansive network for non-vehicular transportation around the Town of Rolesville are the
shared-use pathways. The figure below shows the active transportation network for bicycles and pedestrians.

Figure 15 - Active Transportation Facilities
e S~

/ l | B /
S ] Legend
1 (5 Pedestrian Facility :_-_-: Town Boundary
I, 2 / . Bicycle Facility D ETJ Boundary
i
‘b,k(\\/ 2 Shared Use Path Open Space
s o
Q,
44?% E School
© & Parcel
21y - w,
- __r' 2 Water
\'7 f
’
/&{
’?@/?O>
— PN
-3 N NG
i i
y [
= i
< H
!
.......... -4 ‘j
Q
) R,
> (/,VGr
5 OIV"”Q
g 8o
&
o~ .
'\ [
c.?.'\ .!
! R
P i !

1 P
R %

s,

:.-m.'.:'\Lob, s
i —i, SBURG Ro ."; e

e

Updated May 2020



® Community Transportation Plan

Bicycle and Pedestrian Crashes

The Town of Rolesville has not had many bicycle and or pedestrian crashes. Over a 12 year period, there were four
pedestrian crashes within the study area boundary. One pedestrian crash off South Main Street resulted in death.
During this time period, there were five bicycle crashes within the study area boundary. None of the bicycle crashes
recorded resulted in serious injury or death. Three of the five bicycle crashes were at sign-controlled intersections. All
crashes were distributed throughout residential and commercial areas of the Town.

The bicycle and pedestrian crash data was recorded by NCDOT between 2007 and 2018.

Figure 16 - Bicycle and Pedestrian Crashes

L

Legend

® Pedestrian Crash :

® Bicycle Crash D ETJ Boundary
Open Space
School
Parcel

Water

®  Updated May 2020

45



Town of Rolesville °

Transit

The Town of Rolesville is serviced by GoRaleigh. The Rolesville Express (Route 401X) travels from US 401 BUS

(Main Street) in Rolesville to the Triangle Town Center in Raleigh. Route 401X runs from 5:42 am to 8:10 am and

5:30 pm to 7:54 pm Monday through Friday. The transit service aims to serve commuters coming to and from the
Town of Rolesville. By connecting the Town of Rolesville to the GoRaleigh network, it provides another mode of
transportation to and from the Town. Future considerations for expanding the network have recently been explored
through the Wake Transit Plan's Community Funding Area Program.

Figure 17 - Transit

] Legend

@® GoRaleigh Stop l.—

= = = GoRaleigh Route D ETJ Boundary

Open Space
School
Parcel

Water

Updated May 2020

46



® Community Transportation Plan

No Vehicle Households

The figure below shows the percentages of households that do not have access to a vehicle by census block group.
The area with a higher percentage of households that do not have access to a vehicle are just outside of the Town
of Rolesville boundary on the west side. Approximately 5% of households in this block group do not have access to
a vehicle. The total number of households in the block group that do not have access to a vehicle is 70 households.
The majority of households in the study area have access to one or more vehicles.

Figure 18 - No Vehicle Households

] Legend

Percent No Vehicle Households : -: Town Boundary

_ Less than 2% D ETJ Boundary
2% - 10% Open Space

I vo% - 20% school

B 20% - 30% Parcel

- Greater than 30% Water

Updated May 2020




Town of Rolesville ®
EXiSting Land Use Classification Acreage Percent
The existing land uses in the Town of Rolesville can be seen Commercial 109 219%
below. The majority of the Town of Rolesville's land is classified as Industrial = 0.10%
residential or vacant. The combined residential land use including Institutional 17 0:30%
manufactured housing, low-density residential, and medium- Manufactured Housing 1133 187%
density residential consists of approximately 46%. The vacant land Multi-Family 147 240%
use is appropriately 47% of the existing land use. Other 579 1.0%

Public/Private Open Space 715 1.2%
Rolesville is currently updating its Land Development Ordinance Residential Low-Density 1146 18.9%
(LDO). The Yown's land uses will need to be consistent with the Residential Medium-Density 1514 25.0%
updated LDO once completed. Vacant 2806 46.4%
Figure 19 - Existing Land Use S W A
y Legend
Residential Dwelling Low Density
Residential Dwelling Medium Denisty
- Multi-Family Housing
- Institutional
| Cemetary
- Commercial
- Condo
Rec/Open Space
- Industrial
- Leased
....... o Manufactured Housing
_______ ‘ - Mobile Home Park
| - Retirement Home
Vacant
- WS/Systems
:__-_-; Town Boundary
‘ D ETJ Boundary
Open Space
School
Parcel
Water
| / i &)
2 L
i '}J
< s‘ Updated May2020

48




Key Destinations

Community Transportation Plan

The key destinations around the Town of Rolesville include schools, parks, and open space. The Town of Rolesville
has four public schools and two private schools within the Town's boundary. There are two parks—the Redford Place
Park and the Main Street Park—in the heart of downtown. Other local attractions include the Little House Museum
and Gallery, the Granite Falls Swim & Athletic Club, and places of worship. Noting the connections between the key
destinations will help inform the transportation recommendations. Providing accessibility and multimodal options

will enhance the ability of pedestrians, drivers, and cyclists alike reach their desired destination.

Figure 20 - Key Destinations

Legend
Smith Creek
Greenway Hiusoum o=
limiama?
e "l
O"’@so i Private School D ETJ Boundary
4/,» i.. i
) 2 Public School
w
E Open Space
Jones Dairy -1
Elementary Dt — %
) Semssmmenm—ey
ﬂ_ K
I £, ;
S ! AN I
o
Heritage e ey
{igh School !
!
promnnmmed
- H H
.................... - ] i..
! i
J\,_\. ey i
\ = VilBridge | < [
Nature ParkI! \’. =
el ., ot
“,
\'\J"?
"\. Sanford
N CreekiElementary
A Yy -
=) o B
\' Sl Galler
7 Park y
g
!
0/\/,14/ o Rolesville
(9 : Elementar
N .- y
Ro £ Jhales; AP =)
i Academy SChf”,P Ik .
ey i ) Redfor:d P
’Roiesville'; I‘"'-',;\ Place F.’.,ark ) R
i Middle ! A1 ! ’/‘

o] \p i - £
o $SchoOl Sty , oS¢ I~ 9
- 5 1 T
H A i' ! ’_/ ,./ v
Rolesyjlle : o ’./
H %, H -
Charter, ] L I’,"

ACademy "~rsa.

i
R i Rolesville
iHighiSchool

Parcel
Water
Cedar Fork
Greenway
Updated May 2020

-+



CLLLLLLLTTTTTIT

e

Previous Plan Review

It is crucial to leverage the existing work that has been
previously conducted. This section analyzes planning
efforts at the town, county, and regional level that all
contain relevant recommendations for the development
of the Rolesville Moves Community Transportation Plan.
All of the recommendations listed are summarized from
their respective documents.




® Community Transportation Plan

2002 Rolesville Community Transportation Plan

The 2002 Rolesville Community Transportation Plan outlined the vision and goals, existing conditions, policy
directives, and issues facing the Town of Rolesville. The 2002 CTP discusses the relationship between transportation
planning and land use development. Despite being over fifteen years old, the relationship between zoning and

land used to support transportation is relevant but needs to be updated. The CTP discusses the desire to limit the
number of dead-ended streets and require sidewalks on one side of all collector streets in its Thoroughfare Plan
map. The Community Transportation Plan sought to recommend improvements to contribute to the convenience
and safety of all pedestrians in the Town of Rolesville.

The Community Transportation Plan focused on recommendations along two major corridors, Young Street and Main
Street. Traffic analysis was used to determine the level of service (LOS) and peak hour traffic for commute times in
the morning and afternoon. The plan showed renderings of proposed cross sections with four-lane undivided roads,
dedicated turning lanes for left turns, and two-lane undivided roads. All renderings had proposed sidewalks on both
sides. Although outdated, there are relevant recommendations that support the Town's vision of maintaining a safe
and community-oriented place to live and work.

Relevant Recommendations

« Young Street. Restriping pavement on Young Street to provide one-lane travel in each direction with one left-
turn lane, and on-street parking as necessary.

- Young Street. Replacing traffic signals with roundabouts at intersections where roundabouts may be warranted.
+ Main Street. Reconstructing Main Street to a pedestrian-friendly corridor. Recommends creating 12-foot-wide

travel lane with 8-foot planted buffers. The cross section would include standard 6-foot sidewalks along both
sides of Main Street.

< Main Street. Consider streetscaping that includes enhanced pedestrian lighting and resilient vegetation within
planted buffers.

51



Town of Rolesville

Comprehensive Bicycle Plan (2013)

The Comprehensive Bicycle Plan analyzed the current bicycle network in the Town of Rolesville in 2013. The plan
aimed to encourage biking around town by considering a variety of facility types including dedicated bicycle lanes,
sharrows, and multiuse pathways. The recommendations focused on integrating bicycle infrastructure while also
maintaining the rural charm of the Town. A major consideration was how new development will be a key driver

in how and where bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure is created in the coming years. The Town's policies and
ordinances help to guide this new development.

Relevant Recommendations

- Connect streets and other bicycle facilities together
to create a holistic network that includes schools,
parks, shopping centers, and residencies.

- Widen the Main Street/Louisburg Road/US 401
corridor cross-section to accommodate sharrows
and sidewalks.

- Create better off-road facilities like greenways and
soft trails.

- Create better on-road facilities such as bicycle lanes, )
wide outside lanes, and paved shoulders. -

\ £
Prepared for the Town of Rolesville by the J. 8. Lane Company and NCDOT Divtsion

- Enhance safety by educating all mode-users on how
to share the road.




® Community Transportation Plan

Wake County Transit Plan (2016)

The Wake County Transit Plan identified the need to enhance transit services as congestion worsens and populations
continue to grow throughout the county. The Transit Plan aimed to connect communities by providing frequent and
reliable services while also enhancing the accessibility across all of Wake County. The plan connects all twelve Wake
County municipalities with services to Raleigh-Durham International Airport (RDU), the Research Triangle Park (RTP),
and Durham, North Carolina.

Relevant Recommendations

+ Route Improvements and Expansions. GoRaleigh will include a new bus route (Route 401) that will connect
Rolesville with Triangle Town Center during the weekday peak hours between 6 am - 9 am and 4 pm -7 pm.
This went into operation in 2020.

- Connecting the County. Expanding the county network will allow Rolesville residents to more freely move
around the county as a whole via public transit.

by,
<]

&
@b
=4
Locally funded
cApfﬂSL serveee
cantinues west to
4% o
2 <
e
N V" @
e
jov =
T o P
® a\\
..................... \{)\

Durham-Wake Commuter Rail
Rapid service focused on rush hour

Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) Corridor
All-day Frequent bus service
using BRT infrastructure

o0 S 30-minute service
& : All-day 30-minute bus service

60-minute service
o8 - All-day hourly bus service

=y ... Peak-Only Service
2 Hourly bus connection available

o s during rush hour
Note: this map shows intertown i & g

links only; local routes are not
shown.

i Wake County Communities

Other Destinations

53



Town of Rolesville

2017 Rolesville Comprehensive Plan & Future Land
Use Map

The Rolesville Comprehensive Plan outlines the framework to direct growth and development in order to create a
well-connected, community-oriented Town. The Comprehensive Plan recommends enhancing and establishing a
multimodal network that can improve safety and mobility for all transportation users including pedestrians, cyclists,
transit users, and drivers. The Comprehensive Plan identifies Main Street as a prime corridor for commercial, office,
and light industrial development. Additional strategies and recommendations aim to preserve the sense of rural
community while capitalizing on the assets the Town of Rolesville can offer developers.

Relevant
Recommendations

54

< Create a close-knit system of secondary
streets. By maintaining secondary streets,
greenspace is preserved while also
creating street patterns that facilitate
walkable environments for visitors and
residents alike.

- Celebrate Downtown. The plan states
that redevelopment will be guided by
mixed-use development codes that will
be able to draw retail and a diverse
variety of housing options. In tandem,
multimodal options will be provided to
help facilitate growth along the Main
Street corridor.

- Adopt a resolution and policy that
supports the idea of Complete Streets
town wide. Updating portions of the
Comprehensive Plan to reflect NCDOT's
Complete Streets Policy (2019) will only
enhance the Community Transportation
Plan's efforts to incorporate pedestrians,
cyclists, and transit riders.

Tk

( o

,M_mwﬂdf
o Z Ll

.

4

/ Z
/' ) %
: ,\L\L’} . A
3 o Puleylownid
T [

Rolesville: Future Land Use Map

[ High Density Residential [l nustrial

[ Town Center I school

water Supply Watershed  [JJllll Mixed Use Neighborhood [ Preserved Open Space
I commercial I water Sewer Serwvices

Medium Density Residential [l Business Park

] &7 Boundary
wemses Town Boundary

Low Density Residential

N

0 05

ol
— e—iles



o Community Transportation Plan

CAMPO Connect 2045

The Research Triangle Region's Metropolitan Transportation Plan—Connect 2045—acts as the guiding document for
future planning decisions and investments related to roadways, bicycle facilities, transit services, and pedestrian
facilities for both the Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) and the Durham-Chapel Hill-
Carrboro Metropolitan Planning Organization (DCHC MPO). Connect 2045 considers the work conducted by both
CAMPO and DCHC MPO in order to address the shifting needs and growing demographics across the region. Using
forecast modeling, Connect 2045 identifies the trends, needs, and deficiencies across the region to determine how to
plan and fund projects until planning horizon 2045.

The 2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan is currently under development by CAMPO and DCHC.

Relevant —
Recommendations 2045 Metropolitan ’\,\ﬁ _.'—
/

Transportation Plan

 The Northeast Area Study. CAMPO Ad°";igj::;d‘”av 2V S
initiated the Northeast Area Study to
identify sustainable transportation
strategies for growing communities.
These recommendations include
roadway, bicycle, pedestrian, and
transit projects.

« US 401. The proposed
recommendation on US 401
bypass (Lousiburg Road) will be
widened from two to four lanes
to accommodate large volumes of
traffic. Through LAPP, US 401 (Main
Street) will include bicycle and
pedestrian corridor improvements.

- Jones Dairy Road Extension. The
project would widen the existing
two lanes to four lanes from Chalk
Road to US 4071.

< NC 98. The plan proposes widening
NC 98 to a four-lane major
thoroughfare between Jones Dairy
Road and US 401.

+ Burlington Mills Road. The MTP
proposes a widening of Burlington
Mills Road to four-lane major
thoroughfare from US 1to US 401.

Interchanges  Grade Separations Roadway Improvements

- Peebles Road Extension. The new Horizon Year Horizon Year Horizon Year
I t . t d O 20 ® 205 G 2025 evwwsrsomurane JNG)
ocation prOJec IS a propose O © ——
two-lane minor thoroughfare from 0 2 ® 2 — s

Jonesville Road to Main Street (US [ O mameEt B GRmRE e—
401) north of Bowling Drive. ‘




Town of Rolesville °

CAMPO NC 98 Corridor Study (2018)

The NC 98 Corridor Study was commissioned to study the segment of NC 98 from US 70 in Durham County to
US 401 in Franklin County. The study analyzed the impacts of a rapidly growing population on the transportation
network by considering mobility and safety for all users. In addition to transportation considerations, the corridor
study sought to capture how the shifting demographics would impact surrounding development and market
conditions. The NC 98 Corridor Study identified priorities to suggest the appropriate phased implementation
strategy that would guide development along the corridor.

Relevant Recommendations

+ Long Term Improvements. The recommendations included widening NC 98 (Wait Avenue) from Jones Dairy
Road to US 401 to four lanes.

- Proposed Intersection Treatment. At the intersection of NC 98 (Wait Avenue) and Jones Dairy Road, the
proposed improvement included adding a signalized traffic measure. A road diet was also considered, but
ultimately dismissed after public input.

YOUNGSVILLE

1
'
i
1 US 70 to Sherron Road
Tos ! (Access Management)
v ! === Sherron Road to Old Falls of Neuse Road
]

By 3 (Widen to 4 Lanes)
~"~._ ======_Jones Dairy Road to US 401
(Widen to 4 Lanes)
s \Nake Forest Roadway Improvements N
; 0 Z5 5 Miles A
[ Saa—
98, =
T TR 401
i
J/f’s
idlr
&
50
96 Y
.
‘\

Figure 38: Proposed intersection treatment at Jones Dairy Road.

2 'f‘ r-_?‘ - /ﬁ _ I

@ CORRIDOR
STUDY

NCCAMPO - DCHC MPO - NCDOT I

North Carolina Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization,
Durham Chapel Hill Metropolitan Planning Organization
& North Carolina Department of Transportation

NC 98 CORRIDOR STUDY

56



o Community Transportation Plan

Main Street Vision Plan (2018)

The Main Street Vision Plan establishes a set of objectives that are specific and quantifiable to work towards

the community's goals. The plan identifies three zones along Main Street (US 401 BUS): the suburban fringe,
village core, and rural transition. The zones identify the potential growth strategies appropriate for each type as
shifting demographics impact the Town of Rolesville and Wake County. The plan identified numerous mobility
recommendations including proposed typical sections, intersection improvements, and active transportation
recommendations. The recommendations included an implementation plan with associated cost estimates. The
Vision Plan considers the future growth with existing needs to create a holistic action plan to address land use and
transportation issues.

Relevant Recommendations

- Modal Choices. New sidewalk connections, multi-use pathways, and dedicated bicycle lanes should be added
where possible to ensure active transportation along the corridor.

- Safety for All Users. Identify key locations along the corridor to recommend pedestrian crossing flashers, refuge
islands, or mid-blocks.

+ Access Management and Enhance Connectivity. Consolidate driveways and parking lots to preserve access to
existing development and retail while also protecting pedestrians and bicyclists.

< Supportive Surrounding Land Uses. Consider the beautification of paved or planted medians and create
consistent signage around the corridor.

« Support Quality Redevelopment. Leverage new sidewalks, bicycle lanes, and multi-use pathway connections to
create a means of active transportation along the corridor.

s e+ ripe & firm analysis

A ripe and firm analysis was conducted on all parcels in

the study area. To complete this analysis, a subjective
windshield survey looked at each parcel and the
development that currently occupies it. Individual parcels
are classified into one of three categories: firm, opportunity,
or ripe. This analysis is used to identify areas both likely
and unlikely to change. Often, there are areas that are not
clearly one or the other, and those are identified simply as
opportunities.

FIRM
© Existing buildings with historic character and
architectural significance
© Churches, schools, government buildings
© Residential properties currently occupied with
structures in decent condition
OPPORTUNITY
O Underutilized property, but currently occupied

© Current use may work but the building and/or site

needs a face-lift
© Current building/site is of value but the use needs
to change to become additive to a vibrant, walkable LEGEND
community
© Oversized parking lot . Ripe
RIPE Opportunity

O Vacant parcel . Firm
O Property currently for sale

© Building is dilapidated to the point of no repair

57



Town of Rolesville °

Rolesville and Wake Forest Transit Study (2020)

Three transit service alternatives were developed and shared with the public in May 2020. The residents from
Rolesville and Wake Forest were given the opportunity to comment and provide feedback on the alternatives in
order to select a preferred one. In addition to public involvement, both the advantages and disadvantages of the
alternatives were considered in the selection of the preferred alternative. Ultimately, the final alternative selected
was service alternative one, which service alternative includes a Rolesville-Wake Forest connector bus. The Towns
of Wake Forest and Rolesville will consider the recommended service alternative, as well as other potential options
for transit services in the next fiscal year, continuing to discuss ways the Towns can partner together to provide
enhanced transit service for residents.

Relevant Recommendations
- Alternative 1: Peak-hour and mid-day fixed route connector service between Rolesville and Wake Forest.

« Alternative 2: Microtransit Option 1- GoWake Access. Dedicated demand response service or same day service.

- Alternative 3: Microtransit Option 2 - Demand response ridesharing service (Uber) and GoWake access with ADA
supplemental service.

Alternative 1: Route Design Characteristics

Monday - Friday, 6:20 am - 8:20 am,

Rolesville - Wake Forest

Connector Rolesville - wake | Days and Hours of Service
= Forest Transit Stud 11:00 am - 1:00 pm & 5:00 am - 7:00 pm
Annual Revenue Hours (one bus) 1,470
A= Frequency 21
r Distance (miles) 5.5
@) e
(e

Rolesville and Wake Forest Transit Study
July 23,2020

Technical Memorandum #3

AsRolesville - >

. cO
TOW C':()’ Wake  Raleigh
waeromes: CAIMP® ¥

v i) MatropaRtan Fanning Drganaason

Service Alterllative 1: Rolesville-
Wake Forest Connector

This connector bus service would provide a key
connection between Wake Forest and Rolesville. The
connection would facilitate transfers to other transit
services in the GoRaleigh network. This bus service
would be lift-equipped and include a bicycle rack on
the front of the bus.

Prepared by: RLS & Associates, Inc.

58









Community Transportation PIN

CONTEXT SENSITIVE STREET DESIGN

61



Town of Rolesville °

Introduction

There is no single solution for improving all streets in Rolesville. Each road is unique and its solution should relate to
the surrounding context. Streets are typically designed for the car, which can make active transportation choices
difficult, inconvenient, and often dangerous. Context sensitive street design supports the vision that, based on

the function of a particular facility and its surrounding area, streets should be designed with an emphasis for
pedestrians, bicyclists, motorists, and transit riders. By integrating land use and transportation planning, the context
sensitive design process can be applied to determine the most appropriate street cross-section to better serve the
variety of community priorities, land use contexts, and activity centers along a specific corridor.

Complete Streets

One step towards ensuring context sensitive design is by emphasizing the importance of complete streets. The
Rolesville Comprehensive Plan supported the movement to adopt a Complete Streets Policy to support every type
of person traveling along or across a road regardless of age, physical capacity, or mode of transportation. Rolesville
Moves CTP integrates complete street design into the recommendations in order to ensure street network of the
future is safe and convenient and provides mode choices based on surrounding context for users of all ages and
abilities.

Land Use and Transportation Integration Strategy

The Rolesville Comprehensive Plan—as well as other previous planning documents—established a precedent for
emphasizing ways to improve network mobility by connecting the transportation system with surrounding land
uses. To strengthen this alignment between land use context and the Town's stated vision for mobility, the Rolesville
Moves Community Transportation Plan includes a strategy that links land use and transportation decisions. The
strategy includes two parts: a set of mobility principles based on consolidated land use context areas and a land use
and transportation overlay map that vets transportation recommendations against the context areas.

Consolidated Land Use Context Areas

As a guiding document for transportation decisions, the Rolesville Moves Community Transportation Plan lays the
groundwork for more detailed policies and programs related to Rolesville's multimodal transportation network.

The Future Land Use Map included in the Comprehensive Plan expresses the Town's intent for how it will use land
resources in the future. The consolidated land use character categories shown here are based on the Future Land

Use Map. The ten character areas have been consolidated into six categories to recognize similarities of form and
function and to more simply reflect the linkage between land use and street design. Likewise, the Town participated
in a regional land use planning exercise designed to streamline land use inputs into the region's travel demand model
for the CAMPO 2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan. This exercise used CommunityViz, a digital model for land
use and development, to provide consistent terminology for land uses that occur throughout the region that touches
eight counties.

CTP Consolidated Land Use Designation (Town Future Land CommunityVIZ Place Types (2050
Context Areas Use Map) Metropolitan Transportation Plan)
Town Center
Town Center (TC)
Town Core Commercial (along Main Street)

Community Commercial (CC)
Industrial (along Main Street)

Mixed Use Neighborhood Mid-rise Residential (MRR)

Mixed Use

High Density Neighborhood Mixed Density Residential Neighborhood (MRN)

Business Park Regional Employment Center (REC)




CTP Consolidated Land Use Designation (Town Future Land

Community Transportation Plan

CommunityVIZ Place Types (2050

Context Areas Use Map) Metropolitan Transportation Plan)
Low Density Residential Small Lot Residential Neighborhood (SLRN)
Residential
Medium Density Residential Larger Lot Residential Neighborhood (LLRN)

Commercial (rural locations)

Neighborhood Commercial Center (HCC)

Open Space Preserved Open Space

Protected Green Space (POS)

Areas designated as Schools in the Town's Future Land Use Map are blended in with the prevailing Consolidated
Context Area for that school. For example, Rolesville High School is shown as “Residential” given the schools
proximity to the Residential designation. The School designation from the Town's Future Land Use Map coincides
with the Civic and Institutional place type from the 2050 MTP exercise.

Figure 21 - Consolidated Context Areas

1
|
RD

ILLE

JONEsy

i ,
i {
MITCHELL MILL RD
" e - §
s L




Town of Rolesville °

Mobility Principles

Town Core

The Town Core area is the best opportunity to encourage multimodal facilities that enhance community activities
and commercial or industrial development. In the future, Rolesville will continue to promote walking and biking
by implementing a mixture of land uses, higher development densities, and a design that encourages active
transportation. The experience of the pedestrian, bicyclist, and transit user should be a consideration in the design
of all street types, including collector streets branching off of Main Street.

Mobility Principles
1. More urban street design patterns are needed to encourage walkability. Streets in the Town Core
area should support more urban land use and design. Street patterns should maximize connectivity, minimize
block lengths, and tighten block radii to slow cars at intersections. The pedestrian realm should include wide
sidewalks and street trees that provide shade and a buffer from travel lanes. On-street parking should be
encouraged.

2. The safety of bicyclists and pedestrians in Town Core area is a priority. Streets in the Town Core
area should be designed for bicyclists and pedestrians to safely travel along and across corridors. This design
emphasis should promote reduced observed travel speeds, create narrower travel lanes, and avoid free flow
right turn lanes. The distance between marked pedestrian crossings should be minimized, and multi-lane
streets should include landscape medians that serve as a pedestrian refuge at intersections and marked mid-
block crossings.

Figure 22 - Town Core

MITCHELL MILLRD.

64



® Community Transportation Plan

Mixed Use

The Mixed Use areas are the Town's best opportunity to promote active transportation outside of the Town Core.
Key characteristics of neighborhood mixed use activity centers include an interconnected street system that provides
linkages to shops, services, housing, and amenities in an addition to a well-connected pedestrian and bicycle
network. By encouraging a mixture of higher density uses and reducing the distances between key destinations,

the Mixed Use areas will connect the Town Core and Employment Center areas to lower-density residential uses.
The experience of the pedestrian, bicyclist, and transit user should be the center in the design of all street types to

encourage non-vehicular modes of transportation.

Mobility Principles

1. People need convenient choices in how they choose to travel to destinations such as schools,
shopping areas, and employment centers from their neighborhood. Given the proximity to schools,
retail opportunities, and future employment centers, particular attention is needed consider how people in
nearby neighborhoods safely and conveniently access these destinations without having to take personal

vehicles. This is particularly true for the shortest trips.

Multimodal connectivity is needed to link the Town Core with Mixed Use areas. The Town Core's
proximity to and relationship with the Mixed Use area requires a more deliberate approach to how people
move on foot, by bike, and with transit. The Rolesville Comprehensive Bicycle Plan (2013) and the Main
Street Vision Plan (2018) focus attention on opportunities to increase connectivity challenges within the

Mixed Use and Town Core areas, respectively.

Figure 23 - Mixed Use

/
= (- S /_.J
] f /3
/| i ezt FOWLER RO EXT
|
|

S b

JONESVIL L pry

MITCHELL MILLRD.

65



Town of Rolesville

The Employment Center includes Future Land Use Business Park land use designation. The Employment Center
would support a greater diversity of land uses in Rolesville and promote job growth. An internal network of
sidewalks and pedestrian features would encourage employees to walk between destinations, promoting a healthier
workforce. There should be a limited amount of supporting commercial uses such as restaurants and retailers to
serve employees. Due to the proximity of the Employment Center to Mixed Use and Residential land uses, creating a
well-connected transportation network that provides choices in how people can travel will help create a place for all
people to live, work, and play. Upon adoption of the Rolesville Moves CTP, the Town will further explore options for
a commercial and/or employment corridor along the southern side of the US 401 BYP (Lousiburg Road).

Mobility Principles
The Employment Center should

emphasize active transportation amenities to encourage walking or biking to work. Providing these kinds of
opportunities will help promote local businesses and retail in the Employment Center or in the surrounding
Mixed Use area. An emphasis on safety and accessibility in street and urban design should also be

considered.

The Employment Center should allow for pedestrians and bicyclists to safely and seamlessly integrate with
vehicles through the corridor. The Fowler Road extension should provide amenities to encourage active
transportation by considering a four-lane divided section with bicycle lanes and sidewalks. As the future
corridor through the Employment Center, Fowler Road will become a critical connection to serve workers and

residents alike.
Figure 24 - Employment Center

JONESVIL L pry

MITCHELL MILLRD.



® Community Transportation Plan

Residential

Much of the Residential area includes residential neighborhoods that transition from the higher densities marked
by the Town Core and Mixed Use areas to medium and lower densities found in the rural and open space areas.
The Residential consolidated land use area also is served by two activity centers at key intersections referred to
on the map as Rural Crossroads. These centers are slated for smaller scale non-residential places. The intent of the
Transitional area is to maintain a consistency of multimodal travel options with particular to connections to key
destinations, activity and employment centers, and the Town Core.

Mobility Principles
1. Intersections in Residential areas need to safely accommodate multimodal travel patterns.
Many of the Town's newly built roadways over the next several decades likely will be constructed in the
Residential area. Regardless of the timing of those improvements, the Town should continue to improve the
existing roadway network with added focus on key intersections in the Residential area.

2. Multimodal connectivity supports the vision for Activity Centers in the Residential area. The
Residential area includes many of the Town's edge neighborhoods. These residential areas are coupled with
Activity Centers at key intersections that include focused areas of non-residential activity. The Town should
promote multimodal connectivity to the Activity Centers through on-street improvements, strategic sidewalk
projects, and the continued construction of its greenway network.

Figure 25 - Residential

JONESVILLE ppy

S a / IS
gy = o A
1 H =1 IR %

MITCHELL MILLRD

67



Town of Rolesville

Rural Crossroads

As described in the 2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan place type summary, Rural Crossroads represent small
nodes of commercial activity along the study areas rural roadways. In Rolesville, Rural Crossroads have been
identified at three intersections: NC 98 (Wait Avenue) at NC 96 (Zebulon Road), US 401 BYP (Louisburg Road) at
NC 96 (Zebulon Road), and Mitchell Mill Road at Fowler Road. These locations, while residential in use and rural by
context, are appropriate for small-scale businesses, such as gas stations, convenience stores, or restaurants, that
serve a portion of the daily needs of nearby residents. Rural Crossroads are places that have the potential to grow

into a new center but typically at lower densities.

Mobility Principles

1. Street design approaching and at Rural Crossroad intersections should ease the transition in
context and be pedestrian-friendly. Intersection design, including sight distance, approach angles, and
access control is critical given the likely abrupt transition from rural context to developed node. Over time,
it should be expected that development at Rural Crossroads will reach each quadrant of the intersection.
Therefore, street patterns near these locations should create a grid pattern where possible that maximizes
connectivity and relieves traffic pressure at the main intersection. Pedestrian crosswalks and signals are

critical to encourage walkability between intersection quadrants.

Site design for Rural Crossroads should be planned and designed according to best practice
principles for walkable nodes. As a rural walkable node, development should promote compact
development patterns, a street network with a high connectivity, a diversity of housing types, a mixture of
uses where possible, and the protection of natural systems. At the intersection, parking should be organized

into interconnected lots behind the retail (and/or mixed-use) buildings.

Figure 26 - Rural Crossroads

i S i rermss)ommred
o o W N
e S

"\~ iim FOWLER RD EXT

MITCHELL MILLRD.

63



Community Transportation Plan

Open Space
The land use intent of the Open Space consolidated land use area is to preserve elements of rural character, conserve
open spaces, protect critical watersheds, and maintain limited opportunities for residential development (in a

conservation design where utilities exist). The transportation system should focus on the safe movement of people

while promoting active use of natural spaces where appropriate.

Figure 27 - Open Space

Mobility Principles
The Town's natural places are ideal for trails and greenways. Most of the Town's designated natural

1.

spaces are in the Open Space area. These spaces include critical watersheds and open space. Based on the
recommendations from Rolesville's Comprehensive Bicycle Plan and Main Street Vision Plan, the Town should
continue to advocate for appropriate greenways and trails to provide recreational opportunities and critical

multimodal connectivity.

A continued focus on the safety design and operation of roads near the Town’s Open Space

areas is needed. The roads near the Town's rural areas carry less traffic on average than collector streets
and thoroughfares in the heart of Rolesville. However, the design of these roads often is marked by unsafe
curves, limited shoulders, and other unsafe conditions typical of farm-to-market roads. The Town continues
to improve safety through targeted widening projects, modernization, and intersection improvements. Safety

through design and enforcement needs to be a priority as traffic continues to increase on these roads.

i i~
AT i'"-“J i-_\%
o i -
® ; LETE T .
< /)
e
2
E P
2 Ny,
g > K25
g Sk
o
oy |
\ S c = =
i
. Re. &
i
izl AN
LLys
!
e,
PP RN
s i L
@ ______ "

JONESVILLE pry

MITCHELL MILL RD.

69



Town of Rolesville °

Land Use and Transportation Overlay Map

The Town's emphasis on a multimodal transportation network starts with a design approach based on land use
designations from the Rolesville Comprehensive Plan's Future Land Use Map. This context-focused approach to
transportation design accounts for tradeoffs associated with limited right-of-way. Travel mode considerations
should be based on two inputs: the CTP Consolidated Context Areas (future land use designations from the Future
Land Use Map) and CTP Facility Recommendations (recommendations by street type). The overlay of transportation
recommendations on the land use context map provides a quality check to ensure the vision for land use and
transportation align in way that supports broader goals related to mobility, urban design, and quality of life. The
following notes are highlighted in the map shown in Figure 28. Transportation recommendations are discussed in
more detail in Chapter 4. Recommendations.

1. As sidepaths are constructed, connections should be made to existing and future developments.

2. Key crossroads in rural residential areas require thoughtful site design and intersection configurations.

w

As roadways are improved and developments are built, the Town should continue to close gaps in the
pedestrian network.

4. Larger roadway projects that travel through the walkable, mixed-use context areas will require significant
bicycle and pedestrian amenities.

5. For schools located beyond the Town Core, particular attention is needed for how people in nearby
neighborhoods can safely and conveniently travel to school on foot or by bike.

6. Urban and street designs should be coordinated in the Town Core to include wide sidewalks and street trees
that provide shade and a buffer from travel lanes.

In order to understand the feasibility of a potential future employment center, the Town has plans to pursue a
feasibility study or small area plan for the area south of the US 401 BYP (Louisburg Road) along the proposed Fowler
Road extension from Rolesville Road to South Main Street (US 401 BUS). Key elements of a small area plan may
include public engagement; a marketing analysis to determine the market for industrial, commercial, or a mix of uses;
review of existing site conditions and restraints, zoning regulations; land assemblage; utilities; and environmental
impact assessment.

The land use context areas are intentionally designed to be informational but not prescriptive. As conditions change
in the area, new information is made available, and plans continue to be updated, the context areas designations
may be revisited.

70



® Community Transportation Plan

Figure 28 - Context Areas and Thoroughfare Recommendations

—
WAIT AVE 1 \

> O

H

|
'\
(

] T

€

‘ MITCHELL MILLRD / ST,
[ — 4

Legend

=
1
-

2 Lane Divided (Raised Median)
Sidewalk and Sidepath

New Location 2 Lane Undivided
with Paved Shoulders and Sidewalk

2 Lane Undivided with Paved
Shoulders and Sidewalk

2 Lane Undivided with Curb &
Gutter, Bike Lanes, and Sidepath

2 Lane Divided (Raised Median)
with Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and
Sidewalk

2 Lane with Two Way Left Turn Lane,
Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and
Sidewalks

2 Lane with Two Way Left Turn Lane,
Paved Shoulders, and Sidewalks

2 Lane with Two Way Left Turn Lane,
Curb & Gutter, Sidewalk, and
Sidepath

4 Lane Divided (Raised Median -
Narrow) with Curb & Gutter, Bike
Lanes, and Sidewalk

New 4 Lane Divided (Raised
Median) with Curb & Gutter, Bike
Lanes, and Sidwalks

4 Lane Divided (Raised Median -
Narrow) with Curb & Gutter and
Sidewalk

4 Lane Divided (Raised Median)
with Curb & Gutter and Sidepath

4 Lane Divided (Depressed Median)
with Paved Shoulders

Town Core

Mixed Use
Employment Center
Residential

Rural Crossroads
Open Space

Town Boundary

71






Community Transportation PIN

RECOMMENDATIONS

73



Town of Rolesville °

Introduction

As growth and demand continue to increase, roadway improvements are essential to manage congestion and
improve safety. Residents and visitors alike rely on key transportation corridors to provide critical links between
employment locations, schools, shopping, and recreational destinations. In order to support the community and
retain the essence of Rolesville's charm, roadway improvements should be planned to strengthen and leverage
connections by providing alternative routing options and supporting sustainable modes of transportation. The
following chapter provides insight into the identification of roadway needs that were used to generate thoroughfare,
collector street, and intersection recommendations.

Recommendation Development

The recommended on-street roadway improvements for the study area were developed from a process that
considered previous planning efforts, environmental considerations, safety and congestion data, existing and
planned land uses, projected future travel demand, existing and committed projects, and public feedback. In
addition, each recommendation was considered through the framework of each of the plan’s goals. The plan's goals
ensure consistency with the Town's long-term goals to support growth and development in Rolesville. Finally, the
recommendations were aligned with the land use contexts introduced in the previous chapter to appropriately
balance vehicular capacity needs with multimodal accommodations.

Public Input

The first public survey focused on the types of facilities survey participants were interested in. The priorities of
the first survey included more active transportation connections and enhancing the existing roadway facilities. The
second public survey asked participants for direct feedback on draft on-street recommendations. Both rounds of
public engagement were folded into the draft and revised recommendations. For more information on the survey,
refer to the Appendix.

Safety

Crash data provides valuable insight about where improvements may be needed to due safety concerns along
certain roadways or at particular intersections.

North Carolina's Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) identifies potentially hazardous locations that should
be considered as priority safety improvements. These are the identified locations with the plan's study area:

US 401 BUS (N Main Street) at Bowling Drive (2017)

Michell Mill Road at Fowler Road (2019)

Jones Dairy Road at Jones Farm Road (2019)

US 401 BYP (Louisburg Road) at NC 96 (Zebulon Road) (2018, 2019 & 2020)

Rolesville Road at Riley Hill Road (2020)



® Community Transportation Plan

[ (] (]
Existing Congestion
The volume to capacity ratio is a measure of the quantity of vehicles traveling on a road and the actual amount
of vehicles a road can handle. Using the Triangle Regional Model the volume and capacity ratio shows which roads
are under, at, or over capacity. A road with a volume capacity ratio greater than 1.00 is over capacity. The range
between 0.85 and 1.00 is at capacity and a capacity less than 0.84 is considered under capacity. The only road within
the study area boundary that was over capacity in 2013 (the model’s base year) was US 401 BUS (Main Street). The
figure below shows the volume to capacity ratio for 2013. Please note, the volume to capacity ratio is only available
for those roadways contained within the Triangle Regional Model.

Figure 29 - Volume to Capacity Ratio 2013

/ Legend
V/C 2013
| Less than 0.5 D ETJ Boundary
0.50-0.84 Open Space
s 0.85 - 1.00 School
Greater than 1.00 Parcel
Water
4
4
fi
4
4
4
4
T "/!
ol
)
[E— } vy 4
: ¥ 4
* K
yd i K%
3 e
TP % /"..'
A\ L 3 7
UAL e = HY
o -
R @ o V4
/
“ ./':.
&
4
U

pdated May 2020

75



Town of Rolesville °

Future Congestion

Similar to the 2013 V/C ratio map, Figure 30 shows the anticipated capacity for the year 2045. Again, the volume
to capacity ratio shows which roads are over capacity. Segments of US 401 BUS (S Main Street) are over capacity
between Young Street and Burlington Mills Road with volume to capacity ratios between 1.01 and 1.04. US 401 BYP
(Louisburg Road) is not quite at capacity, with a volume capacity ratio of 0.52.

The volume to capacity ratio is only available for those roadways contained within the Triangle Regional Model.
Please note, Granite Fall Blvd has been constructed and paths shown in the model does not reflect the final
alignment.

Figure 30 - Volume to Capacity Ratio 2045

-

T Legend
V/C 2045 {7 Town Boundary
Less than 0.5 D ETJ Boundary
‘b%& 0.50-0.84 Open Space
O"//P,, . 0.85-1.00 School
2 Greater than 1.00 Parcel

Water

Updated May 2020

76



o Community Transportation Plan

Committed Roadway Projects

Committed projects are roadway projects that are fully funded for construction. These projects include locally-led
projects as well as projects led by NCDOT. It is essential to consider committed projects as part of the transportation
planning process to confirm that these projects are consistent with the goals and themes identified through the
Rolesville Moves Community Transportation Plan. Understanding the projects currently underway may address the
existing and projected deficiencies throughout the network.

In addition to leveraging federal and state funding, the Town of Rolesville aims to identify additional funding
sources. These local funds are used to leverage larger funding amounts by increasing competitiveness for regional
grand funding such as the Locally Administered Projects Program (LAPP). The Town successfully secured LAPP
funding for Main Street corridor improvements in February 2020. One grant project will improve Burlington Mills
Road at Main Street intersection by realigning the Burlington Mills Road intersection. The other project will revitalize
sidewalks, streetscape improvements, curb and gutter, and bicycle transportation enhancements along Main Street
between Burlington Mills Road and Young Street. Project construction is anticipated to start mid-2021.

The Town's Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) identifies projects that the Town intends to invest in over a five-year
period. The State Transportation Implementation Plan (STIP) is North Carolina’s ten-year state and federally-
mandated plan that identifies construction funding for and scheduling of transportation projects throughout the
state. The following table lists the projects that are funded in the first five years of the ten-year STIP, which are
considered committed. The identification number refers to how a project is referenced in the STIP. The projects
included in the list are within Rolesville or immediately surrounding the study area’s limits.

STIP ID A R SHARE of Location Description
Construction
Burlington Mills Rd at US 401 | Realign roadway and construct
U-6241 2021 BUS (S Main St) new intersection
US 401 from NC 96 to Flat
R-2814C Under Construction Rock Church Rd/Clifton Pond | Widening
Rd

On-Street Recommendations

The Rolesville Moves Community Transportation Plan on-street roadway recommendations are divided into three
basic categories:

1. Thoroughfare recommendations: Improvements or additions to the arterial roadways in the study area.

2. Collector and connector recommendations: Improvements or additions to the network of secondary
roadways supporting thoroughfares, intended to provide enhanced access and connectivity.

3. Intersection recommendations: Intersection improvements based on safety and congestion data, or
recommendations for new intersections or interchanges based on the future roadway map.

The proposed recommendations aim to leverage existing connections and create strategic links throughout the Town
of Rolesville. The thoroughfare and collector street recommendations are supplemented by identified intersection
improvements. The overall mobility of the transportation system aims to accommodate future growth and provide
flexibility for shifting needs.

77



Town of Rolesville

Thoroughfare Recommendations

The thoroughfare recommendations are intended to alleviate and address future congestion by adding capacity,
access management enhancements, or providing alternative routes. These recommendations are also intended to
address the safety and congestion concerns across the transportation network. Thoroughfare recommendations were
intentionally developed to include multimodal features such as bicycle and pedestrian facilities. The development

of active, sustainable mobility was a key theme during public outreach and project development. Successful
transportation systems aim to identify creative means of expanding vehicular capacity while incorporating
opportunities for alternative modes of transportation. Thoroughfare recommendations are shown in Figure 31 and
the table on the next page. Intersection improvements are also shown in this figure and detailed later in the chapter.

Figure 31 - Thoroughfare Recommendations

Legend

WAIT AVE Intersection Recommendations

® Access Management

® Intersection Improvement
e
I . .
f ® Intersection Realignment
&
<

® New Intersection

® Roundabout

Thoroughfare Recommendations

2 Lane Divided (Raised Median)
Sidewalk and Sidepath*

New Location 2 Lane Undivided with
Paved Shoulders and Sidewalk

2 Lane Undivided with Paved Shoulders
and Sidewalk

2 Lane Undivided with Curb & Gutter,

.% @0@(/
5 e (I Bike Lanes, and Sidepath
i} M < - ) . .
8 S, ) §‘° 2 Lane Divided (Raised Median) with
4 Oq." Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and Sidewalk

2 Lane with Two Way Left Turn Lane,
Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and Sidewalks

2 Lane with Two Way Left Turn Lane,
Paved Shoulders, and Sidewalks

2 Lane with Two Way Left Turn Lane,
Curb & Gutter, Sidewalk, and Sidepath

4 Lane Divided (Raised Median -
Narrow) with Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes,
and Sidewalk**

ER RD EXT

® New 4 Lane Divided (Raised Median)
with Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and
Sidwalks

JONESVILLE Rp

4 Lane Divided (Raised Median -
Narrow) with Curb & Gutter and
Sidewalk

Y

MITCHELL MILLRD 4 Lane Divided (Raised Median) with
Curb & Gutter and Sidepath™*

NOTES: 4 Lane Divided (Depressed Median) with
* The North Main St recommendation Paved Shoulders

(from the Main Street Plan) should
include curb and gutter where
applicable (ideally outside of the
watershed near Young Street)

** Along Rogers Rd and Burlington Mill
Rd, Wake Forest plans for a sidepath
along both sides of the roadway

*** Due to the short length within
Rolesville's planning area, NC 98 and
Forestville Rd will include sidepath
along both sides for consistency

78

Study Area



BUS (N Main St)

® Community Transportation Plan
Facility Name Extents Status Cross-Section Description
4-Lane Divided (Raised Median - Narrow)
Averette Rd Jones Dairy Rd to NC 98 (Wait Ave) Existing Facility | with Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and
Sidewalks
. ) ) 4-Lane Divided (Raised Median - Narrow)
Burlington Mills Rd Egﬁgg‘%ﬁgﬁglb Rd Realignment to Existing Facility | with Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and
Sidewalks
. ) . ) 4-Lane Divided (Raised Median - Narrow)
gurll_ngton Mills Rd Burlington Mills Rd to US 401 BUS (S New Location | with Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and
ealignment Main St) !
Sidewalks
Chalk Rd Averette Rd to Western Study Area Limits | Existing Facility 2-Lane Undivided with Curb & Gutter,
Y 5 Bike Lanes, and Sidewalks
US 401 BYP (Louisburg Rd)/US 401 BUS . 4-Lane Divided (Raised Median) with
Fowler Rd Ext (Main St) to Rolesville Rd NewLocation | ¢, 11 ¢ Gutter, Bike Lanes, and Sidewalks
) . ) - ... | 2-Lane Undivided with Paved Shoulders
Fowler Rd Rolesville Rd to Mitchell Mill Rd Existing Facility and Sidewalks
. ) g - .. | 4-Lane Divided (Raised Median) with
Forestville Rd Foxwild Ln to Lillies Liles Rd Existing Facility Curb & Gutter and Sidepaths
. Grand Rock Way to Burlington Mills Rd . 2-Lane Two Way Left Turn, Curb & Gutter,
Granite Falls Blvd Ext Realignment New Location | gy Lanes, and Sidewalks
) - ... | 2-Lane Two Way Left Turn, Curb & Gutter,
Granite Falls Blvd Terrell Dr to Grand Rock Way Existing Facility Bike Lanes, an. dySi dewalks
. Jones Dairy Rd/Averette Rd to US 401 BUS . 2-Lane Undivided with Paved Shoulders
Jones Dairy Rd Ext (Main St)/Pulley Town Rd New Location and Sidewalks
. Averette Rd to Northwestern Study Area - .1 4-Lane Divided (Raised Median - Narrow)
Jones Dairy Rd Limits Existing Facility with Curb & Gutter and Sidepath
) . ) . - .| 2-Lane with Two Way Left Turn, Curb &
Jonesville Rd US 401 BUS (Main St) to Mitchell Mills Rd | Existing Facility Gutter, Bike Lanes, and Sidewalks
) US 401 BYP (Louisburg Rd) to Southern L ... | 2-Lane Divided with Curb & Gutter, Bike
Louisbury Rd Study Area Limits Existing Facility Lanes, and Sidewalk
. US 401 BYP (Louisburg Rd) to Burlington L . 2-Lane Divided with Curb & Gutter,
S Main St (US 401 BUS) Mills Rd Realignment Existing Facility Sidewalks, and Sidepath
. Burlington Mills Rd Realignment to Young - .| 2-Lane Divided (Raised Median) with
S Main St (US 401 BUS) St Existing Facility Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and Sidewalks
) ) . .| 2-Lane Divided (Raised Median) with
N Main St (US 401 BUS) | Young St to US 401 BYP (Louisburg Rd) Existing Facility Curb & Gutter, Sidewalk, and Sidepath*
4-Lane Divided (Raised Median - Narrow)
Mitchell Mill Rd Fowler Rd to Rolesville Rd Existing Facility | with Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and
Sidewalks
4-Lane Divided (Raised Median - Narrow)
Mitchell Mill Rd Rolesville Rd to Eastern Study Area Limits | Existing Facility | with Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and
Sidewalks
. NC 96 (Zebulon Rd) to Western Study - .. | 4-Lane Divided (Raised Median) with
NC 98 (Wait Ave) Area Limits Existing Facility Curb & Gutter and Sidepath
Pulley Town Rd US 401 BYP (Louisburg Rd) to US 401 Existing Facility 4-Lane Divided (Raised Median) with

Curb & Gutter and Sidepath

*Curb & Gutter when applicable

79




Town of Rolesville

Facility Name Extents Status Cross-Section Description
4-Lane Divided (Raised Median - Narrow)
Rogers Rd US 401 BUS (Main St) to Granite Falls Blvd | Existing Facility | with Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and
Sidewalk
. 4-Lane Divided (Raised Median - Narrow)
Rogers Rd gﬁlﬁlw Falls Blvd to Western Study Area Existing Facility | with Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and
) Sidewalk
. . . - ... | 2 Lane with Two Way Left Turn, Curb &
Rolesville Rd Fowler Rd to Mitchell Mill Rd Existing Facility Gutter, Sidewalk, and Sidepath
) . . 4-Lane Divided (Raised Median - Narrow)
gglesvﬂle Rd/Riley Hill |\ ryechell Mill Rd to Riley Hill School Rd Existing Facility | with Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and
Sidewalk
US 401 BYP (Louisburg | NC 96 (Zebulon Rd) to Northern Study Existing Facili 4-Lane Divided (Depressed Median) with
Rd) Area Study Area Limits 8 Y| Paved Shoulders
Averette Rd/Young St/ ) _— ... | 2-Lane with Two Way Left Turn, Curb &
Rolesville Rd Jones Dairy Rd to Fowler Rd Existing Facility Gutter, Bike Lanes, and Sidewalks

30




® Community Transportation Plan

Bicycle and Pedestrian Element

Active modes of transportation like cycling and walking are crucial to a well-rounded transportation system. Having
bicycle and pedestrian amenities not only provide opportunities for recreation, but also a means of getting from
place to place without the use of a vehicle. The outreach for this plan strongly suggested the desire for a more
robust and better connected active transportation network. While the Town of Rolesville already has worked to
create multimodal corridors, the CTP aims to help identify appropriate active transportation recommendations in
tandem with vehicular considerations.

Safety

As mentioned in Chapter 2: Existing Conditions, there were nine crashes between 2007 and 2018 within the study
area boundary. Three of the nine crashes involved pedestrians while five of the nine crashes involved a cyclist.

One of the pedestrian crashes resulted in a fatality. None of the crashes involving cyclists resulted in a fatality or
serious injury. Many of these crashes were near or on major thoroughfares like Young Street, Main Street, Burlington
Mills Road, and Rogers Road. To address the safety concerns along these major thoroughfares, carefully crafted
recommendations include separated and buffered facilities. In addition to physical separation, consideration to
roadway markings and signage should also be considered. In addition to on-street considerations, intersection
upgrades should also prioritize the safety of bicyclists and pedestrians.

Project Recommendations

Bicycle and pedestrian mobility can continue to expand through a variety of different facility types, each of

which are appropriate in specific contexts and for various users. This plan will be further supplemented with the
development of the Open Space & Greenways Plan. These recommendations focus specifically on on-street bicycle
and pedestrian amenities. The project recommendations in the CTP consist of the following types of facilities:

Bicycle Lanes

Bike lanes designate an exclusive space for bicyclists
that are directly adjacent to travel lanes for motor
vehicles. The preferred minimum width for a bicycle lane
is approximately 6.5 feet. This width allow bicyclists to
ride side-by-side or pass each other without leaving

the bicycle lane. The minimum width under constrained
conditions could be 4 to 5 feet. Protected bicycle lanes
typically include striped or physical buffer between
vehicular traffic and the bicyclists for enhanced
protection.

Paved Shoulders

Paved shoulders are on the edge of roadways and can
serve as a functional space for bicyclists and pedestrians
in the absence of other types of facilities with greater
separation. The presence of a paved shoulder can reduce
crashes where bicyclists may be struck from behind,
which accounts for a significant portion of rural road
crashes.

31



Town of Rolesville °

Sidepath

A sidepath is a bi-directional shared use path that is
located immediately adjacent and parallel to a roadway.
Sidepaths offer a high-quality experience for users of
all ages and abilities compared to on-street facilities in
heavy traffic environments. Sidepaths allow for reduced
roadway crossing distances and maintain rural or small
town community character.

Shared Lane Markings

Shared Lane Markings (SLMs) or “sharrows,"” are road
markings used to indicate a shared bicycle lane and
reinforce the legitimacy of bicycle traffic on the street,
recommend proper bicyclist positioning, and may be
configured to offer directional and wayfinding guidance.

Sidewalks

Like sidepaths, sidewalks are physically separated
from the roadway, but are still within the right-of-
way. Sidewalks are typically between 5 or 6 feet wide
concrete paths.

32



® Community Transportation Plan

Collector Recommendations

Connecting and enhancing the Town's network of collector streets will improve the distribution of traffic throughout
the local network. A disconnected roadway system exacerbates traffic issues and increases travel times. A key goal
of this network includes improve accessibility for residents while minimizing impacts to the natural environment. A
properly implemented plan provide sustainable accessibility to activity centers. Both local and through-traffic will
benefit from the reduced reliance on thoroughfares and enhanced multimodal transportation options.

Existing and proposed collector street connections are shown below. The connection points of proposed collector
streets are important to facilitate overall network connectivity. However, the alignments of these proposed
collectors are flexible and can be modified to accommodate development.

Figure 32 - Collector Recommendations

— ie
LS {

Legend

Thoroughfare Recommendations

MNew Location 2 Lane Undivided with
Paved shoulders and Sidewalk

Mew 4 Lane Divided (Raised Median)
with Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and
Sicdwalks

Collector Recommendations

!’ Existing Connection
Proposed Connection
E Floodplain
- Wetland
Watershed

study Arec



Town of Rolesville °

Intersection Recommendations

The recommendations for the future system include improvements to critical or new intersections and interchanges.
These locations were identified to alleviate operational deficiencies and safety concerns. To preserve mobility and
enhance the overall efficiency of the transportation network, it is crucial to develop a collection of best practices to
allow the Town to respond to changing development pressures. Rather than specific project recommendations, these
best practices provide the ability to remain flexible while incorporating evidence-based planning procedures to make
the best planning decisions for the Town's future. These best practices include intersection improvements and access
management and connectivity best practices.

Intersection Improvements

- Realignments: Roadways are realigned to meet
at as close to a 90-degree angle as possible. This
improves visibility and turning radius.

- Signalization: Some unsignalized intersections may
be eligible for a traffic signal based on their traffic
counts. The NCDOT or the Town must perform a
study to determine if an intersection is eligible.

- Connectivity: Connectivity can be improved
throughout the area providing alternative routing
options to destinations and reduce some of the
traffic at key intersections.

- Improved Crossings: Often the danger to
pedestrians and bicycles can be reduced by
providing improved crossing facilities such as
painted crosswalks, median refuges, or flashing
beacons.

+ Roundabouts: In some locations, replacing
a traditional signalized intersection with a
roundabout can reduce the number of serious
crashes while improving traffic flow.

< Turn Lanes: Turn lanes allow space for vehicles
waiting to turn and reduces the risk of rear-end
crashes.

- Driveway Consolidation: Curb cuts that are
too close to an intersection are consolidated
or relocated to reduce the number of turning
movements or potential crashes.

+ Improved or Advance Signage: Providing advanced
warning signs or installing reflective backplates on
traffic signals can reduce crashes due to reduced
visibility.

34



Access Management Strategies

Access management strategies control the design,
location, spacing, and operation of driveways,
interchanges, median openings, and street connections
to other roadways. Locations with poor access
management often have higher crash rates, more
cut-through traffic on residential streets, and greater
congestion.

Access management strategies can make turning
movements more predictable and minimize congestion
or reduce crashes.

- Dotted Line Markings: These pavement markings
reduce driver confusion and increase safety by
guiding drivers through complex intersections.

- Driveway Length: Increasing the driveway length
to commercial development prevents internal site
operations from affecting the adjacent street.

- Driveway Consolidation or Relocation: Shared-
access driveways minimize curb cuts and reduce
traffic conflict while being particularly effective
near intersections.

+ Intersection and Driving Curb Radii: Curb radii
sized for area context and vehicular usage limits
occurrences of vehicles using opposing travel lanes
or mounting the curb when turning. This results
in less damage to infrastructure and enhanced
pedestrian safety.

 Left-Turn Storage Lanes: Left-turn lanes reduce
vehicle delay related to waiting for vehicles to turn
and may decrease rear end crashes.

< Minor Street Approach Improvements: Adding left-
and right-turn lanes on minor street approaches
allocates more green time to the major street.

- Non-Traversable Median: Medians separate
opposing vehicle flows and provide refuge for
pedestrians. Carefully planned access points and
u-turn access are critical considerations.

< Offset Left-Turns: Offset turn lanes shift the
left-turn lanes to the left to reduce crossing and
exposure time and improve sight distance and gap
recognition.

Community Transportation Plan

Access management should A
never be considered a one-
size-fits-all solution. Successful
implementation is responsive to
surrounding land use and travel
\ context areas. )

-3
—

T E e T

L create 8
conflict points at every driveway.

A raised median and consolidating
driveways reduce conflict points.

https://live-active.org/basic_bike-walk_facility_design

 LEFT LANE |
| MusT F
ot | TuRN LEFT [
S
~ — -
« \ .,

http://www.mikeontraffic.com/left-turn-lane-design-factors/

35




Town of Rolesville ®

Recommendations

The table below explains the intersection recommendations at each location. While a combination of improvements
can be used at each intersection, the identified recommendation address the most pressing issue at each given
location. New intersections should be designed using best practices outline in the Town's LDO and should proactively
consider access management during the design phase. Specifics sections of the Town's LDO are referenced in
Chapter 6. While intersections were not noted as a key issue at any stage of public outreach, identifying locations
for improvement could reduce pedestrian and bicyclist crashes and further encourage safe, active modes of
transportation. The following table summarizes the status of each intersection as well as the recommendation.

Location Status Recommendation
US 401 BUS (N Main St) and Bowling Dr Existing Intersection improvement
US 401 BYP (Louisburg Rd at NC 96 (Zebulon Rd) Existing Intersection improvement
Mitchell Mill Rd at Rolesville Rd Existing Intersection realignment
Mitchell Mill Rd at Fowler Rd Existing Roundabout
US 401 BYP (Louisburg Rd) at Fowler Rd Ext New
Fowler Rd Ext at Rolesville Rd New
Fowler Rd at Jonesville Rd New
US 401 BUS (S Main St) at Burlington Mills Rd Ext New
Jones Diary Rd/Jones Dairy Rd Ext at Averette Rd Existing Intersection realignment
US 401 BUS (N Main St) at Jones Dairy Rd Ext New
Averette Rd/Young St at Chalk Rd Existing Intersection improvement
Mitchell Mill Rd at Jonesville Rd Existing Intersection improvement
US 401 BUS (N/S Main St) at E Young St Existing Intersection improvement and access management
US 401 BUS (S Main St) at Rogers Rd Existing Intersection improvement

36



® Community Transportation Plan

Proposed Network

The proposed network combines thoroughfare, collector street, and intersection recommendations to provide a
glimpse at the future of mobility in and around the Town of Rolesville. With a variety of multimodal facilities, the
proposed network is friendly for all users. The future of transportation will leverage surrounding land uses and
build off of new development or shifting land uses. The multimodal provisions provide options for active modes of

transportation throughout and around the Town of Rolesville.

Figure 33 - Proposed Network
Legend

WAIT AVE Intersection Recommendations

® Access Management

® Intersection Improvement
® Intersection Realignment
® New Intersection

®  Roundabout

Thoroughfare Recommendations

2 Lane Divided (Raised Median)
Sidewalk and Sidepath*

New Location 2 Lane Undivided with
Paved Shoulders and Sidewalk

2 Lane Undivided with Paved Shoulders
and Sidewalk

2 Lane Undivided with Curb & Gutter,
Bike Lanes, and Sidepath

2 Lane Divided (Raised Median) with
Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and Sidewalk

FORESTVII (g gy

2 Lane with Two Way Left Turn Lane,
Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and Sidewalks

2 Lane with Two Way Left Turn Lane,
Paved Shoulders, and Sidewalks

2 Lane with Two Way Left Turn Lane,
Curb & Gutter, Sidewalk, and Sidepath

4 Lane Divided (Raised Median -
Narrow) with Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes,
and Sidewalk**

New 4 Lane Divided (Raised Median)
with Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and
Sidwalks

JONESVILLE Rp

4 Lane Divided (Raised Median -
Narrow) with Curb & Gutter and
Sidewalk

MITCHELL MILL RD 4 Lane Divided (Raised Median) with
Curb & Gutter and Sidepath™”

Y

NOTES: 4 Lane Divided (Depressed Median) with
* The North Main St recommendation Paved Shoulders

(from the Main Street Plan) should Collector Recommendations

include curb and gutter where
applicable (ideally outside of the
watershed near Young Street)

** Along Rogers Rd and Burlington Mill

Rd, Wake Forest plans for a sidepath .
along both sides of the roadway Proposed Connection
*** Due to the short length within

Rolesville's planning area, NC 98 and Study Area

Forestville Rd will include sidepath

along both sides for consistency

Existing Connection

37



Town of Rolesville °

Off-Street Recommendations

The Town of Rolesville is currently in the process of updating the Open Space and Greenway Plan (OSAG). The
updated plan will identify the areas in need of protection and conservation as well as identifying linkages between
green space and residential, commercial, and business areas of the community.

In addition to the Open Space and Greenway Plan, the Town is currently re-writing its Land Development Ordinance
(LDO). In accordance with the Open Space and Greenway Plan, the LDO will strengthen connectivity by linking land
uses to new greenway facilities as well as create new standards for parks and greenways. Where the Community
Transportation Plan focuses on the on-street, multimodal connections between land uses, future planning efforts
will help refine and supplement the transportation network.

Future of Transit

In a joint effort to enhance transit across Wake County, the Town of Rolesville and Wake Forest initiated the
Rolesville and Wake Forest Transit Study to identify a preferred alternative for transit services. In May 2020, the
Rolesville and Wake Forest Board of Commissioners approved three alternatives to be shared with the public for
input and feedback. The three service alternatives that were presented included:

Peak-hour and mid-day fixed route connector between Rolesville and Wake Forest.
Microtransit Option 1: Dedicated demand response service
Microtransit Option 2: Demand response ridesharing service and GoWake access ADA supplement service

The public survey respondents indicated a preference for the first service alternative. The Town's five-year budget
plan will include capital costs for at least four future fixed-route bus stop shelters as part of this service. The Town
would be able to apply for funding through the Community Funding Area Program (CFAP).

While service options two and three were not identified as the preferred alternative, these service options still
provide flexible options for future transit service. Leveraging the previous work conducted in the Rolesville and
Wake Forest Transit Study can help identify future opportunities to expand service or collaborate with regional
partners.




® Community Transportation Plan

Looking Forward

The Northeast Area Study (NEAS) conducted by CAMPO will be an update of the 2014 Northeast Area Study.

The NEAS Update will focus on sustainable transportation, as well as evaluate land use, economic development,
and multimodal needs in the planning area. The areas of study include parts of Franklin County, Wake County,

the City of Raleigh, and the Towns of Bunn, Franklinton, Knightdale, Rolesville, Wake Forest, Wendell, Youngsville,
and Zebulon. The NEAS will inform recommendations that will be considered for inclusion in the CAMPO 2050
Metropolitan Transportation Plan. The study is expected to be completed in summer 2021. During the Rolesville
Moves Community Transportation Plan development, the project team collaborated with CAMPO by providing the
plan’'s draft recommendations and discussing the implications of those recommendations on land use and to ensure
consistency between planning efforts. Town Staff and CAMPO will continue to collaborate in the final phase of plan
development and the ultimate implementation of the regional transportation network.

NorthEast Area Study

State of the Region | Summary Report

to the pecple of the Morthes
. Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization

prepared by Stantec Consultng Servces and J 5 Lane Company

39






Community Transportation PIN

THE FUTURE NETWORK VISUALIZED

91



Town of Rolesville

Introduction

Two corridors were identified for further study. These projects include the new Jones Dairy Road Extension and
Young Street/Rolesville/Averette Road between NC 98 (Wait Avenue) and Mitchell Mill Road.

Jones Dairy Road Extension
Averette Road/Young Street to US 401 BUS (Main Street)

As part of the Rolesville Community Transportation Plan, the two alternative alignments for the Jones Dairy Road
extension were considered. As a high priority connection between Averette Road and Main Street, understanding
the surrounding traffic needs as well as environmental constraints are crucial to identifying the preferred alignment.
Through conversations with the Town staff, the site developer, and the Army Corps of Engineers each alternative’s
potential impacts were considered. Figure 34 shows the two alternative alignments for the Jones Dairy Road
extension. The key considerations outlined in this document are not intended to be a comprehensive preferred
route study, but to outline considerations that were considered as the Town prepared to move forward with

implementation of the extension.

Key Takeaways

While there are numerous environmental
considerations, the challenges associated with
the Jones Dairy Road extension do not differ
greatly between the two alternatives. As the
cost only minimally differs between the two
alternatives, either alignment would likely

have to go through the same permitting and
mitigation process. While the more western
alignment does cross wetland area twice as
opposed to the eastern alignment that only
crosses once, the western alternative may have
more parallel impacts due to the proximity

to wetlands and require greater mitigation
strategies. After many conversations and
desktop reviews of site conditions, the Town's
preferred alternative is the eastern most
alignment. However, key next steps will include
the full delineation of wetlands — at which time
the Town may make a more informed decision on
the preferred alignment.

92

Figure 34 - Jones Dairy Road Extension Alternative
Alignments

Al

/
/

(. AVERETTE pp

Legend

Jones Dairy Road Extension
[ sottbutter
7/, Voluntary Ag District
Water
— WA wetiand
Il Foodoicin

Watershed



¢————————  (Community Transportation Plan

Jones Dairy Rd Extension
Jones Dairy Rd/Averette Rd to US 401 BUS (Main St)/Pulley Town

Existing Condition




Town of Rolesville °

Young Street/Rolesville Road/Averette Road
NC 98 (Wait Avenue) to Mitchell Mill Road

Young Street, particuarly as it intersects near Main Street is a critical link in helping Rolesville create a true town
center by utilizing urban design practices and building a sense of place. While traffic volumes on Young Street
are growing as development increases, the Town's efforts will focus on promoting walk-ability, bike-ability, and

downtown beautification in lieu of further widening to accommodate vehicular travel in the areas proximate to
downtown.

This corridor is the north-south gateway into downtown Rolesville, connecting the areas near Wake Forest through
Rolesville's central business district. Rolesville High School and Main Street Park also rely on Young Street for access.
The two-lane corridor includes disjointed sidewalks and lacks accommodations for bicyclists. General improvements
(e.g., repaving and re-striping) could enhance north-south travel and provide safer conditions for a variety of travel
modes. Access management to improve safety, sidewalk connections to improve walkability, and streetscaping to
improve appearance would enhance this gateway to downtown Rolesville.

( Existing Condition )




Community Transportation Plan

Legend
DEVELOPMENT IN REVIEW OR

®  NDER CONSTRUCTION
A-LANE SECTION

Figure 35 - Young Street/Rolesville Road/Averette Road Context Map

‘.-x..N..
I 2-LANE SECTION

3 -
THALES ACADEI\/lY WAIT AVE
ELIZABETH SPRINGS o ]
TOWN RE
! ([ 3 THE PRESERVE AT O coO
JONES DAIRY (N) —

EMPLOYMENT CENTER

e —

PERRY FARMS [ _JENEH]
F ....éﬁ.l Py
L = id
AVERETTE R|DGE \o’./OA/<C . THE PRESERVE AT i:.l.
i @ /0 NI 14
H i ', )
. s ~.\/')0 9
THE PRESERVE AT N\ i
JONES DAIRY. (S) i
T 7,
77

—
1

e —————————

o
53

w

]

=

>

g

[9) g =
~ N

MITCHELL MILL RD






Community Transportation PIN

PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION PLAN

97



Town of Rolesville °

Action Plan

The success the CTP will hinge on the ability of local, regional, and state officials to effectively collaborate on the
implementation of projects and policies. The recommendations in this plan built on previous plans and ongoing
efforts by the Town of Rolesville to improve the transportation network through close coordination with agency
partners and the Town's transportation and land use policies. The completion of this plan will be the preliminary
step in implementing a multimodal network that affects mobility, safety, development patterns, and the aesthetic
character of Rolesville. This chapter outlines a simple set of recommendations to guide local staff to identify
strategic opportunities to implement the on-street recommendations of the CTP.

The Project Development Process

Most of the recommendations in the CTP will need to undergo additional evaluation and further development prior
to implementation. The graphic below outlines the general project development process to see an identified need
in the CTP (Step 1) move through design and construction. A good example of a project already advancing through
the project development process is Main Street for which the Town completed a detailed corridor study, preliminary
engineering, and is in the final design stage now.

Transportation Planning (Identify need)

Planning Studies, Preliminary Engineering, and
Environmental Review (Identify specific solution)

Final Design (Develop design plan and specifications)

Construction (Deliver project)

98



® Community Transportation Plan

Funding Process

Funding for most transportation projects is allocated by NCDOT. To ensure effective investments, NCDOT has
created a methodology that considers projects separately based on the area of impact. This process considers both
quantitative data and local input. Ultimately, NCDOT aims to enhance the state's infrastructure and in turn support
economic development and quality of life. This process is formally known as the Strategic Mobility Formula and was
established under the State Transportation Investments law. The three categories used when funding projects within
the Strategic Mobility Formula are outlined below.

Funding Categories

The Strategic Mobility Formula funds projects in three categories: Division Needs, Regional Impact, and Statewide
Mobility.

- Division Needs: Project in this category receive 30% of available revenue. Rolesville projects compete with
all projects in Division 5 which includes the rest of Wake County, as well as Durham, Franklin, Warren, Vance,
Granville, and Person Counties. This category is where the bulk of Rolesville's roads qualify for funding. Projects
are scored in the Division Needs category based on both data and local preference — each valued equally.

+ Regional Impact: Projects in this category also receive 30% of available revenue. Rolesville is in Region C — made
up of Division 5 and Division 6. Similar to Division Needs, projects in the Regional Impact category are scored
based on both data and local preference; however, the data score makes up 70% of the overall score and local
preference makes up 30%.

- Statewide Mobility: Projects in this category receive 40% of available revenue. Projects in this category are
scored solely on data and no consideration for local preference.
|

[] Division 5
[ pivision 6
[l RegionC
) Rolesville, NC

Development Driven Projects & Other Funding Sources

Developer contributions to the funding, construction, and implementation of transportation infrastructure are

a large part of Rolesville's ability to remain a vibrant and growing community. By applying tools such as the
Comprehensive Plan, the Land Development Ordinance, and the Traffic Impact Analysis requirements contained
within Section 8: Traffic Impact of the LDO, the Town is able to clearly communicate with developers and identify
improvements needed to accommodate new or infill growth while protecting the mobility of current residents and
workers. When new developments are proposed in the Town, all efforts should be made to ensure that those new
developments are consistent with the transportation recommendations from this plan and other transportation
planning efforts. Development should be supportive of transportation and mobility solutions. Additionally, this
requires consideration of right-of-way expectations to ensure the site can accommodate future widening or
inclusion of bicycle and pedestrian facilities. This requirement is spelled out in Section 9.2: Streets and Sidewalks of
the Land Development Ordinance. Collaboration between Town staff, NCDOT, and the development community is
key to the success of this approach.

The Town of Rolesville should also consider leveraging other sources of funding like the State Street-Aid (Powell Bill)
Program or Rolesville's dedicated road development fee.



Town of Rolesville

Project Prioritization

Roadway Prioritization Process

The Rolesville Moves CTP includes a prioritization assessment for roadway projects to assist the Town with
identifying how to best allocate future funding. The prioritization includes a blend of quantitative and qualitative
metrics. The metrics used were developed using feedback received from Town staff, the plan’s Steering Committee,
public input, CAMPQO, and NCDOT. The following section outlines each metric used in the prioritization process. This
process helped identify near-, mid-, and long-term priority projects.

The prioritization methodology can be found in the table below. Intersections were not prioritized and should be
implemented on an as-needed basis. Once prioritization metrics were identified, weighting values were determined
for each of the metrics. These weighting values were based on input from the public, Town staff, and the Steering

Committee.

Evaluation Criteria Score Weight

Previous Plan Project received a score of 1 if they are included in a previous or adopted plan. Projects 5%
that have not been included in a previous or adopted plan will receive of score of 0. ?

. NCDOT Planning Level Section Safety Scoring Data was utilized to identify project

Crash History areas with high scores, which are considered to have poor safety performance. 15%
The existing volume-to-capacity(V/C) ratio for each project was scaled using the

Existing V/C Ratio Triangle Regional Model. Projects that were highly congested received the highest 15%

scores.

Each project was scored based on the V/C reduction from the model's base year (2013)
V/C Reduction to the horizon year (2045). Future year V/C was obtained from a future year build-out 10%
model. Projects with the highest reduction were scored highly.

Projects receive a high score if they accommodate both bicyclists and pedestrians.
Bicycle & Pedestrian Projects receive a moderate score if they accommodate only one mode of active 15%
transportation.

Projects receive points if the roadway has been identified in the Joint Rolesville-
Transit Wake Forest Transit Study as a potential transit corridor. In addition, existing transit 10%
connections also receive points.

Critical connections serve or provide new linkages for schools, emergency services,
Critical Connections community facilities, and potential activity centers. Projects classified as a critical 20%
connection receive a higher score.

The prioritization criteria outlined this methodology are structured to reflect values of
the project’s implementation. The total value score was obtained through the process 10%
was divided by the estimated project cost. The project with the top value/cost received ?
the highest score with other projects received a relative score.

Value/Cost

The intent of the prioritization process is to provide the Rolesville Board of Commissioners, the Rolesville Planning
Board, and Town staff with a tool to use in decision making. The findings from this prioritization exercise can be
used to guide communication with agency partners or members of the general public. The prioritization findings
should also adapt to the circumstances that present a growing community such as Rolesville. As new development
is being considered within the study area, the prioritization order may need to be revisited to best accommodate
emerging areas of growth.

100



Roadway Prioritization Results

The table below reflects the near-, mid-, and long-term priorities for roadway recommendations in the Rolesville

CTP. Within each grouping, projects are not listed in a specific order. Plan corridor prioritization results can be used
as a tool by the Town when establishing the annual CIP list. Since this plan is not financially constrained, there are
no specific time periods associated with each prioritization grouping. The Town should pursue these improvements

opportunistically to help keep pace with the emerging or shifting needs of Rolesville.

Near-term
(0-10 years)

*S Main St (Burlington Mill Rd Realignment to Young St)

Community Transportation Plan

Rogers Rd (US 401 BUS (Main St) to Granite Falls Blvd)

S Main St (US 401 BUS) US 401 BYP (Louisburg Rd) to Burlington Mill Rd Realignment

Rogers Rd (Granite Falls Blvd to Western Study Area Limits)

Granite Falls Blvd Ext (Grand Rock Way to Burlington Mill Rd Realignment)

Averette Rd/Young St/Rolesville Rd (Jones Dairy Rd to Fowler Rd)

Burlington Mills Rd (Burlington Mill Rd Realignment to Forestville Rd)

*Burlington Mills Rd Realignment (Burlington Mill Rd to US 401 BUS (S Main St))

N Main St (Young St to US 401 (Louisburg Rd))

Mid-term
(10-20 years)

Granite Falls Blvd (Terrell Dr to Grand Rock Way)

Forestville Rd (Foxwild Ln to Lillies Liles Rd)

Averette Rd to (Jones Dairy Rd to NC 98 (Wait Ave))

Rolesville Rd (Fowler Rd to Mitchell Mill Rd)

Jones Dairy Rd (Averette Rd to Northwestern Study Area Limits)

Jones Dairy Rd Ext (Jones Dairy Rd/Averette Rd to US 401 BUS (Main St)/Pulley Town Rd)

Fowler Rd (Rolesville Rd to Mitchell Mills Rd)

**US 401 BYP (Louisburg Rd) (NC 96 (Zebulon Rd) to Northern Study Area Limits)

Folwer Rd Ext (US 401 BYP (Louisburg Rd)/US 401 BUS (Main St) to Rolesville Rd)

Louisbury Rd (US 401 BYP (Louisburg Rd) to Southern Study Area Limits)

Long-term

(+20 years)

Jonesville Rd (US 401 BUS (Main St) to Mitchell Mill Rd)

Pulley Town Rd (US 401 BYP (Louisburg Rd) to US 401 BUS (N Main St)

Rolesville Rd/Riley Hill Rd (Mitchell Mill Rd to Riley Hill School Rd)

Mitchell Mill Rd (Rolesville Rd to Eastern Study Area Limits)

NC 98 (Wait Ave) (NC 96 (Zebulon Rd) to Western Study Area Limits)

Mitchell Mill Rd (Fowler Rd to Rolesville Rd)

Chalk Rd (Averette Rd to Western Study Area Limits)

*LAPP 2021 Project
**The existing cross section aligns with the recommended cross section

101



Town of Rolesville

Near-Term
The near-term projects represent the on-street recommendations that are of the highest priority. The
implementation of the recommendations should start with the thoroughfares identified in blue like Averette Street/

Young Street/Rolesville Road, Burlington Mills Road, Rogers Road, Granite Falls Boulevard Extension, and Main
Street. The roadways shown in red are currently committed projects or are in the process of being completed. The
Burlington Mills Road realignment and section of South Main Street highlight the Town's commitment to multimodal

enhancements and safety. By leveraging resources, the implementation of the near-term projects should allow the

Town to create the expansive multimodal network that preserves the Town's charm.

Figure 36 - Near-Term Projects

WAIT AVE

AVERETTE gpy

)
JONES DAIRY RD EXT

FORESTVIILE py

FOWLER RD EXT

o
[+3
w
=
> 2
s
w wy
Zz I
8 g
&
&
)
a

MITCHELL MILL RD

102



Community Transportation Plan

Mid-Term

The mid-term projects are recommendations that will benefit the Town the most after the completion of the
near-term needs. While these project would provide enhanced connectivity, the implementation of these projects
would require a strong base transportation network. Similar to the near-term projects, the mid-term projects have
identified multimodal facilities and enhanced roadway amenities like curb and gutter. Special consideration should
be given to the design of these facilities, particularly in areas to the east of Rolesville in or near the Little River

watershed.

Figure 37 - Mid-Term Projects

WAIT AVE

k FOWLER RD EXT

JONESVILLE pp

MITCHELL MILLRD

106



Town of Rolesville

Long-Term
The long-term projects represent the recommendations that are not the Town's highest priority; however, given
that the Town's needs could change over time, these projects can be opportunistically implemented. While the

majority of these projects are focused on mobility to areas outside of Rolesville rather than in the Town's core, the
importance of inter-jurisdictional connectivity cannot be overlooked. The implementation of recommendations on
thoroughfares like NC 98 (Wait Avenue) or Mitchell Mill Road should be closely coordinated with agency partners like
NCDOT and CAMPO as well as other entities like the City of Raleigh, Wake County, and the Town of Wake Forest.

Figure 38 - Long-Term Projects

WAIT AVE

(s
S
o)
o
5
$
S
&
4

FORESTY) ¢ RD

FOWLER RD EXT

JONESVILLE Rp
ROLEs Y 1 o

MITCHELL MILLRD

14



® Community Transportation Plan

Conclusion

Implementing Rolesville Moves CTP will be an ongoing and iterative process that should be reevaluated on a regular
basis. Moving forward, key steps at the Town-wide level that will help advance the recommendations include the
following:

Update the CTP every five years to ensure the plan's recommendations and objectives remain relevant.
Finish the update of the Land Development Ordinance.

Amend the CTP once the new Open Space and Greenways Plan has been completed, as well as the Rolesville
Bicycle Plan Update.

Update the CTP annually to include new transportation network enhancements as they are identified in the
development review process.

The Rolesville Moves Community Transportation Plan provides a vision for transportation recommendations that
considers existing and future needs for all travel modes. The creation of this Action Plan helps staff and elected
officials advocate for projects that will have the greatest impact to the Town. The Town has many identified
transportation needs, and fully funding and implementing the recommendations will take a number of years. As
projects move forward into funding and implementation, the Town will need to work with the Capital Area MPO
and NCDOT to determine how best to advance recommended projects. The Town will also continue to monitor
emerging needs and changes in the way projects can be funded and implemented. Project priorities will be
reassessed through subsequent updates to this plan. This dynamic process will help the Town of Rolesville continue
to effectively address its transportation needs both now and into the future.






Community Transportation Plan‘

APPENDIX

107



Polco

Rolesville Community
Transportation Plan Survey

Survey Results
FINAL

06/18/2020



The main reason | choose to live in Rolesville is: (select one)

E Location 27%
Housing costs 28%
n Schools 2%
I3 Jobs 2%
I grew up here/have family here 5%
E I do not live in Rolesville 2%
1 other 3%

What is ONE WORD that describes your vision for Rolesville in the future?
Growth

Outdoors

Community

Beautiful

safe

Inviting

Homel!

Growth

modern town

| know we are expanding, but | would love to keep the small charm. So..CHARM
Small

Family

Quaint

Expansion

Charming

Close to big city attractions, yet small town convenience.
Charm

Charming

Growing

Quaint

Charming

Growth......but not just growth in residential housing
Growing

Charm

Country

Innovation



Restaurants

Expanding

Progressive

community

Hopeful

Private

We need a downtown, without destroying all of the trees.
Growth!

Destination

Prosperous

Quality

Cary

Growth

Connected

progress

Growth

Community

Small, friendly and modern town
Infrastructure

Growing

Potential The survey didn't allow for any short answer responses, but | wanted to clarify that I live in zip code 27587. It is Zoned Wake
Forest, but it is adjacent to Rolesville Middle School, so any changes made to Rolesville also impact Wake Forest residents.

Remain a SMALL, caring community.
Progressive

hometown

Modern

Growth

Progressive

Homey

Slow down on the building. The town losing its hometown feel
Sustainable

Quaint

Quaint

Quant

commUNITY

What is the most important transportation issue facing Rolesville? (check one)

n Traffic congestion and delay 12%

E Pavement conditions or maintenance 7%

pment patterns and transportation infrastructure 27%

n Not enough public transportation service (bus, etc.)



E Not enough bicycle lanes, bicycle paths, or bicycle parking

Not enough pedestrian facilities (sidewalks, crosswalks, etc.)

E Safety issues (speeding, accidents, etc.)

m Other

8%

13%

25%

3%

9%

Please rate each of the following transportation conditions in Rolesville out of these categories:

Excellent, Good, Fair, Poor

Question Excellent
Ease of travel by car in Rolesville 45%
Ease of travel by public transportation in 29
Rolesville

Ease of travel by bicycle in Rolesville 7%
Ease of walking in Rolesville 7%
Ease of public parking 13%
Roadway maintenance 17%
Congestion on local roads 20%
Congestion on major roads 20%
Attractiveness of roads 10%
Traffic signal timing 7%
Traffic safety 18%
Ease of travel by car in Rolesville

Excellent 45%
Good ] 42%
Fair [ 13%
Poor 0%

Ease of travel by public transportation in Rolesville

Good

42%

20%

27%

32%

48%

55%

50%

38%

37%

48%

62%

Fair

13%

23%

48%

43%

30%

23%

27%

25%

40%

35%

18%

Poor

0%

50%

18%

18%

8%

5%

3%

17%

13%

10%

2%

Ease of travel by bicycle in Rolesville

Ease of walking in Rolesville



Ease of public parking

Roadway maintenance
Congestion on local roads
Congestion on major roads

Attractiveness of roads

Traffic signal timing

Traffic safety

In the last five years, has the transportation system improved, stayed the same, or worsened? (check
one)

E Stayed the same 30%

Worsened 20%

How should your tax dollars be spent on transportation in Rolesville? Share what you think is the
importance of each (essential, very important, important, or not important)

Question Essential Very Important Important Not important
Construct sidewalks and crosswalks 35% 38% 27% 0%

Construct on-street bicycle lanes and/or

3% 32% 40% 25%

bicycle facilities beside roadways ° 0 0 °
Construct off-street trails and greenways  35% 25% 30% 10%
Expand and enhance public transportation

P P P 13% 13% 40% 33%
(routes, shelters, etc.)
Construct new roads 18% 28% 28% 25%
Widen existing roads 20% 35% 25% 20%
Improve intersections 22% 28% 40% 10%
Maintain existing roads, bicycle, and

g y 22% 47% 30% 2%

pedestrian facilities



Question Essential Very Important Important Not important

Enhance existing streetscapes (landscaping,

L 25% 40% 28% 7%
lighting, etc.)

Construct sidewalks and crosswalks

Essential 35%

Very ] 38%

Important

Important I 27%

Not important 0%

Construct on-street bicycle lanes and/or bicycle facilities beside roadways

Construct off-street trails and greenways

Expand and enhance public transportation (routes, shelters, etc.)

Maintain existing roads, bicycle, and pedestrian facilities

Enhance existing streetscapes (landscaping, lighting, etc.)

Construct new roads

Widen existing roads

Improve intersections

What types of new development would you like to see in Rolesville?

n Mostly residential 5%
Office 5%
B industrial 0%



What’s most important to you?

u Supporting a mix of uses and development types 27%
Limiting building height (except within the Town center) 3%
E The physical appearance of buildings 25%

What modes of transportation do you use to travel to work or school in a typical week? (check all that
apply)

E Vanpool/Carpool 13%
Walk 10%
B Bike 7%
I sus 0%
Taxi 0%
I other 2%

In the last 12 months, about how many times, if at all, have you or another household member-. ..

. 2 times a week or .
Question more 2 to 4 times a month Once a month or less Not at all

Ridden a bicycle to shop, get meals or run

errands 2% 3% 12% 83%
Ridden a bicycle for commuting 0% 2% 2% 97%
Ridden a bicycle for fun or exercise 25% 13% 28% 33%
Walked to shop, get meals or run errands 3% 12% 27% 58%
Walked for commuting 3% 2% 2% 93%
Walked for fun or exercise 7% 15% 8% 0%

Ridden a bicycle to shop, get meals or run errands

2 times a 2%
week or more

2to4timesa N 3%
month



Once a month W 12%
or less

Not at all | 83%

Ridden a bicycle for commuting

Ridden a bicycle for fun or exercise

Walked to shop, get meals or run errands

Walked for commuting

Walked for fun or exercise

When | walk, it's to... (check all that apply)

u Travel to work or school 2%
Protect the environment 7%
n Go to shops and restaurants 20%
E Save money 0%
I don't walk 0%
B other 5%

When | don't walk, it's because... (check all that apply)

n | don't feel safe 7%
The existing sidewalks are in bad condition 7%
n There's nowhere to walk to 45%

E I'm not interested in walking 15%



Other 23%

When | ride a bike, it's to... (check all that apply)

n Travel to work or school 2%
Protect the environment 2%
n Go to shops and restaurants 8%
E Save money 0%
| don't bike 33%
B other 2%

When | don't bike, it's because... (check all that apply)

u I don't feel safe 13%
The existing sidewalks are in bad condition 10%
m There's nowhere to bike to 23%
E I'm not interested in biking 33%
Other 22%

What is your employment status?

E Currently not employed and looking for work 0%

Not employed, not looking for work (retired, stay-at-home parent, etc.) 15%

Do you live and/or work in Rolesville? (check one)




E I work in Rolesville

I live AND work in Rolesville

n Neither

Please choose your age group

n 17 or younger

B 18t 24

|

B 4510 64

E 65 or older

Do any children under the age of 18 live in your household? (check one)

=
o

Are you or any members of your household over the age of 65? (check one)

N ves

What is your gender?

E Female
Non-binary

n Prefer not to say

78%

2%

17%

3%

0%

0%

47%

45%

8%

55%

45%

19%

81%

53%

47%

0%

0%



Do you have a disability

E Yes (go to next question) 8%

What type of disability do you have? (Please select all that apply.)

n A mobility disability (difficulty walking) 20%
B Blindness/limited vision 0%
Deafness or hard of hearing 20%
n A long-term medical illness (e.g., epilepsy, COPD, etc.) 0%
B3 oifficulty with self-care 0%
Mental health illness 20%
E Memory or cognitive difficulty 0%



Rolesville MOVES Community Transportation Plan

Q1 How well would the INTERSECTION RECOMMENDATIONS address

the future needs of the study area?

Answered: 25  Skipped: 0

Definitely
would

Probably would
not

Definitely
would not

No opinion

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50%

ANSWER CHOICES
Definitely would
Probably would
Probably would not
Definitely would not

No opinion

TOTAL

1/7

60% 70%

RESPONSES
32.00%

48.00%

4.00%

8.00%

8.00%

80%

90% 100%

12

25



Rolesville MOVES Community Transportation Plan

Q2 Comments (OPTIONAL)

Answered: 2 Skipped: 23

RESPONSES

The Mitchell Mill x Rolesville Rd intersection has always been a nightmare so a realignment
would be great. PLEASE make sure roundabouts are large enough for big trucks (tractor
trailers, dump trucks pulling equipment, large horse trailers, etc) to get around comfortably.

| don't think there are any intersection problems in Rolesville right now. As the town grows with
ALL the new subdivisions that are approved, changes will be needed. Particularly along
Averette and Young/Rolesville Rd. Unless the house on the east side of Young at Jones Dairy
is coming down, | don't see why that large tree has to be affected. The Main Street
intersections seem to be performing well right now.

2/7

DATE
1/26/2021 11:48 AM

1/25/2021 8:40 PM



Rolesville MOVES Community Transportation Plan

Q3 How well would the THOROUGHFARE

RECOMMENDATIONS address the future needs of the study area?

Answered: 25

Definitely
would

Probably would
not

Definitely
would not
No opinionl

0% 10% 20% 30% 40%

ANSWER CHOICES

Definitely would

Probably would

Probably would not

Definitely would not

No opinion

TOTAL

3/7

Skipped: 0

50%

60% 70%

RESPONSES
40.00%

36.00%

8.00%

12.00%

4.00%

80%

90% 100%

10

25



Rolesville MOVES Community Transportation Plan

Q4 Comments (OPTIONAL)

Answered: 6  Skipped: 19

RESPONSES

I live in the Willoughby community and just learned Rogers Rd right in front of my house is
going to become a FOUR-LANE practically highway. | have never seen that road congested,
and it should not be allowed! We are buying expensive homes that will become worthless with
a highway in the front yard

Would be great to include bike lanes on main St and streets leading to it or add greenway.
Rogers traffic is not heavy enough to warrant 4 lanes

Rogers Road does NOT need to be a 4-lane divided highway. It needs traffic calming, with turn
lanes into neighborhoods, not something that will make traffic move faster.

Love the 4-lane planning for Burlington Mills, Rogers Road, and Mitchell Mill in particular.

As Rolesville grows with ALL the new subdivisions and still so FEW choices for shopping,
dining and groceries, the residents will need main roads to take out of town to get those
services.

4/7

DATE
1/30/2021 8:18 AM

1/30/2021 12:18 AM
1/27/2021 11:51 AM
1/27/2021 11:42 AM

1/26/2021 11:48 AM
1/25/2021 8:40 PM



Rolesville MOVES Community Transportation Plan

Q5 How well would the COLLECTOR
STREET RECOMMENDATIONS address the future needs of the study
area?

Answered: 25  Skipped: 0

Definitely
would

Probably woul

Probably would
not

Definitely
would not

0%  10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES
Definitely would 40.00%
Probably would 32.00%
Probably would not 0.00%
Definitely would not 8.00%

No opinion 20.00%
TOTAL

5/7

10

25



Rolesville MOVES Community Transportation Plan

Q6 Comments (OPTIONAL)

Answered: 3 Skipped: 22

RESPONSES

Creating additional routes will be helpful as the traffic increases because of new construction.
We live in Terrell Plantation Subdivision, and we anticipate the already heavy traffic to increase
exponentially when the new subdivisions on and around Averette and Jones Dairy Road are
completed, so we'll need an alternate route for getting out of our subdivision.

Excited that this might help alleviate some pressure from our main roads. Nice to see Fowler
Rd and Jones Dairy extensions.

So many of the neighborhoods go in and out of only one main road, connecting these
neighborhoods will spread the traffic around more. There need to be alternative ways to get
around town when traffic is backed up with events or accidents.

6/7

DATE
2/6/2021 2:04 PM

1/26/2021 11:48 AM

1/25/2021 8:40 PM



Rolesville MOVES Community Transportation Plan

Q7 Do you have any other comments? (OPTIONAL)

Answered: 4  Skipped: 21

RESPONSES

1) Thank you for your attention to bike and pedestrian traffic. We hope Rolesville will enforce
the bike lanes and discontinue allowing automobiles to park in bike lanes, rendering parts of
them useless and unsafe. (Case in point: in front of Granite Falls Athletic Club. There is no
need for cars to park in the bike lane there when there is ample parking lot parking.) 2) Creating
additional routes will be helpful as the traffic increases because of new construction. We live in
Terrell Plantation Subdivision, and we anticipate the already heavy traffic to increase
exponentially when the new subdivisions on and around Averette and Jones Dairy Road are
completed, so we'll need an alternate route for getting out of our subdivision. Thanks for paying
attention to this!

Seems to be comprehensive. Is there a timetable on specific projects? All would be interested
in this.

We strongly object to the southwest option for the Jones Dairy Rd Ext. It would require
displacement of too many homes. The northeast option is the only route to take.

It is still a huge shame that the Bypass creates such a traffic mess on Young St/Rolesville Rd.
When those two huge subdivisions start filling up, combined with the HS traffic, it will only get
worse. A great solution would be to build a bridge over the Bypass for straight only traffic
(probably the majority of the Young/Rolesville traffic) to avoid the U-turns on the Bypass. You
still have 2 of the 4 corners empty at that intersection, something should be done before those
two are occupied.

717

DATE
2/6/2021 2:04 PM

2/6/2021 8:00 AM

2/5/2021 12:13 PM

1/25/2021 8:40 PM



ty Transportation Plan

i

Commun

PROJECT SHEETS




Rogers Road

US 401 BUS (Main St) to Granite Falls Blvd

Project Description <

Rogers Rd is a key connector to US 401 BUS (Main St). ‘\
This particular segment of Rogers Rd links retail and
businesses with surrounding residential areas. A a critical <
connector to Downtown Rolesville, Rogers Rd should Z
build off the Main Street Vision Plan to expand the &
active transportation network into residential areas. %é"
o

&
Land Use Considerations J 9“3%
O

The surrounding future land use context is classified '
as part of the town core. The recommendation on S
Rogers Rd allows this corridor to maximize connectivity 7
for pedestrians and allows for higher development i
densities. While this segment of Rogers has already been

considered by the Wake-Rolesville Transit Plan, further = A

analysis should be conducted to further identify linking /
transit and land use. /

Ata Glance o o o
Existing Facilities Planned Facilities
Existing Number of Lanes: 4 with two-way turns

V4 Sidewalk VA Sidewalk
Proposed Number of Lanes: 4

|| Bike Lane Bike Lane
Length: 0.40 miles

|:| Shared-Use Path |:| Shared-Use Path
Estimated Total Cost: $4,200,000

L Transit Stop Transit Stop
Project Term: Near-term

Typical Section
4-Lane Divided (Raised Median - Narrow) with Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and Sidewalk

e |
V&V
I(j |

Total ROW: 110 feet

&
M- M oq 1
EEEENTENE Y vodewin Streetmix
[\

Rogers Rd

Granite Falls Blvd to Western Study Area Limits

Project Description

This segment of Rogers Rd from Granite Falls Blvd to
the western study area limits is a key opportunity to
connect Downtown Rolesville with residential and open
space areas. As a continuation of the corridor between
US 401 BUS (Main St) and Granite Falls Blvd, creating
an interconnected multimodal network will enhance
the mobility experience throughout the Town. Bicycle
and pedestrian facilities along Roger Rd would connect
Downtown Rolesville with greenways pathways in the
northwestern area of the Town and beyond.

[Land Use Considerations

Improvements along Rogers Rd should capitalize on the

diversity of land use in surrounding areas. At the edge of
higher density areas, connections to other land uses will

be more critical as Rolesville continues to develop.

At a Glance

Existing Facilities Planned Facilities

Existing Number of Lanes: 2

V4 Sidewalk Sidewalk
Proposed Number of Lanes: 4

|| Bike Lane Bike Lane
Length: 141 miles

|:| Shared-Use Path |:| Shared-Use Path
Estimated Total Cost: $14,600,000

L Transit Stop Transit Stop
Project Term: Near-term

Typical Section
4-Lane Divided (Raised Median - Narrow) with Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and Sidewalk

&
M- M oq 1
EEEENTENE Y vodewin Streetmix
[\

e |
V&V
I(j |

Total ROW: 110 feet



Granite Falls Boulevard Extension

Grand Rock Way to Burlington Mills Rd Realignment

Project Description y

The extension of Granite Fall Blvd will provide a key
connection that parallels US 401 BUS (Main St). The

two lane section with a center turn lane and sidewalks
will provide pedestrian accommodations similar to the
US 401 BUS (Main St) section. As one of the few east-
west connectors in Rolesville, the extension will provide
enhanced connectivity and alleviate traffic strains on US
401 BUS (Main St).

. . . BURLINGTON
L.and Use Considerations MILLS RD

The new roadway will primarily travel through !
residential land uses; however, it will provide connection |
between the town core and mixed use areas.

At a Glance o o o
Existing Facilities Planned Facilities
Existing Number of Lanes:  New Road

1 Sidewalk Sidewalk
Proposed Number of Lanes: 3

|| Bike Lane Bike Lane
Length: 0.43 miles

|:| Shared-Use Path |:| Shared-Use Path
Estimated Total Cost: $4,400,000

L Transit Stop | Transit Stop
Project Term: Near-term

Typical Section
2-Lane Two Way Left Turn, Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and Sidewalks

L4
y__n = S |
] NI /S IR

Total ROW: 80 feet

Averette Road/Young Street/ Rolesville Road —

Jones Dairy Rd to Fowler Rd

Project Description

The Averette Rd/Young St/Rolesville Rd corridor is an
essential north-south connection. With direct access
between NC 98 (Wait Ave) to US 401 BYP (Louisburg
Rd), this corridor runs through the heart of Rolesville's
Downtown. In order to maintain the small-town charm
of Rolesville, bicycle and pedestrian connections are
proposed instead of roadway widening. With multimodal
facilities as well as traffic calming improvements, the
Averette Rd/Young St/Rolesville Rd can fulfill the vision
of the CTP by enhancing the network while providing
alternative modes of transportation.

[.and Use Considerations

This corridor provides connectivity between the town
core, mixed land uses, and future employment center.

At a Glance

Existing Facilities Planned Facilities

Existing Number of Lanes: 2

Sidewalk V4 Sidewalk
Proposed Number of Lanes: 3

|| Bike Lane Bike Lane
Length: 314 miles

|:| Shared-Use Path |:| Shared-Use Path
Estimated Total Cost: $12,800,000

Transit Stop Transit Stop
Project Term: Near-term

Typical Section
2-Lane with Two Way Left Turn, Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and Sidewalk

% M !
‘ . I : ;.-' n — \‘
] NI /S IR

Total ROW: 80 feet



Burlington Mills Rd o

Burlington Mills Rd Realignment to Forestville Rd

Project Description 7 1 j A
<! [ %O
Burlington Mills Rd—similar to Rogers Rd—is an A f,! - \\08%\
important connection between US 401 BUS (Main St) :_:‘ f ’\,,'PIQ
and residential areas near the Town boundary. With 1 o,

connection to Forestville Rd, this section of Burlington
Mills Rd is a heavily traveled corridor. Widening the
roadway to four lanes from two lanes will alleviate
strains on the surrounding transportation network.
Providing dedicated pedestrian and bicycle facilities
will also expand the mode choice and encourage active
transportation.

[Land Use Considerations

This section of Burlington Mills Rd will connect
residential areas to the mixed use at the intersection
of Granite Falls Blvd and the Burlington Mills Rd
realignment. Rolesville Middle School will benefit from
multimodal accommodations.

Ata Glance o o o
Existing Facilities Planned Facilities
Existing Number of Lanes: 2 with two-way turn lane

Sidewalk Sidewalk
Proposed Number of Lanes: 4

|| Bike Lane Bike Lane
Length: 169 miles

|:| Shared-Use Path |:| Shared-Use Path
Estimated Total Cost: $24,600,000

L Transit Stop | Transit Stop
Project Term: Near-term

Typical Section
4-Lane Divided (Raised Median - Narrow) with Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and Sidewalk

1)
1)
3 *
=

Made with Streetmix

e |
V&V
I(j |

Total ROW: 110 feet

Averette Road

Jones Dairy Rd to NC 98 (Wait Ave)

Project Description

Upgrade the existing section of Averette Rd from Jones L
Dairy Rd to NC 98 (Wait Ave) to include multimodal :3 -
facilities, curb & gutter, and a four-lane raised median.

As a critical north-south connection through the Town

of Rolesville, special consideration has been given to the
potential constraints of the Little River Watershed. This .
section of Averette Rd will connect the existing Jones i

r
Dairy Rd to the Jones Dairy Rd extension. Thisnew . 777 ; E
intersection should consider mutimodal enhancements | &
as well as intersection improvements to improve safety | ‘-g
through the corridor. AT, angpunis S =S
1 - 04/
' )
. e . ati . i / N,
Land Use Considerations ! AN
Neem S o
This section of Averette Rd is primarily surrounded by 7
residential neighborhoods making it a critical roadway o ! y f N
i - -z 41 i S e
between housing and Downtown Rolesville. = r %;i \..— {
"""" ' Hf Qerf=-r— S

Ata Glance o o o
Existing Facilities Planned Facilities
Existing Number of Lanes: 2

Sidewalk Sidewalk
Proposed Number of Lanes: 4

|| Bike Lane Bike Lane
Length: 138 miles

|:| Shared-Use Path |:| Shared-Use Path
Estimated Total Cost: $20,800,000

L Transit Stop | Transit Stop
Project Term: Mid-term

Typical Section
4-Lane Divided (Raised Median - Narrow) with Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and Sidewalk

1)
1)
3 *
=

' -
' [} - - o
] I EEEENTENE Y ——
[\

Total ROW: 110 feet

V&V



Fowler Rd to Mitchell Mill Rd

Project Description

Rolesville Rd is an important connection to the southern
part of the study area. As Young St transitions to
Rolesville Rd at Fowler Rd, maintaining the multimodal
facilities along either side of the roadway is crucial

for connectivity. This section of Rolesville Rd provides
linkages to Rolesville High School and Downtown
Rolesville as well as Mitchell Mill Rd to the west and
Zebulon to the east. As an essential north-south corridor,
the recommendation along Rolesville Rd compliments
the recommendation along Young St to focus on
multimodal connectivity and safety improvements.

[.and Use Considerations

This section of Rolesville Rd connects residential land
uses to the future employment center. The multimodal
recommendations leverage surrounding existing and
future land uses.

Ata Glance o o o
Existing Facilities Planned Facilities
Existing Number of Lanes: 2

Sidewalk Sidewalk
Proposed Number of Lanes: 2 with two-way turn lane

|| Bike Lane || BikeLane
Length: 136 miles

|:| Shared-Use Path Shared-Use Path
Estimated Total Cost: $20,200,000

L Transit Stop | Transit Stop
Project Term: Mid-term

Typical Section
2 Lane with Two Way Left Turn, Curb & Gutter, Sidewalk, and Sidepath

&
M- M oq 1
EEEENTENE Y vodewin Streetmix
[\

e |
V&V
I(j |

Total ROW: 90 feet

Rolesville Road o

Jones Dairy Road

Averette Rd to Northwestern Study Area Limits

Project Description

The improvements along Jones Dairy Rd will expand
the multimodal network, particularly in northern
Rolesville. The roadway recommendations along with
the intersection improvements will create a safer
transportation experience for pedestrians, cyclists, and
drivers alike. As the Jones Dairy Rd extension alignment
is finalized, Jones Dairy Rd will provide an important
connection to Main St and Pulley Town Rd without
traveling through the Averette Rd and Young St.

LLand Use Considerations

Northern Rolesville consists of primarily residential land
uses. The Jones Dairy Rd provide connectivity from
lower-density residential uses to mixed use and the
Town's core through major thoroughfares like Young St.

Ata Glance o o o
Existing Facilities Planned Facilities
Existing Number of Lanes: 2

|1 Sidewalk |1 Sidewalk
Proposed Number of Lanes: 4

|| Bike Lane || Bike Lane
Length: 0.82 miles

|:| Shared-Use Path Shared-Use Path
Estimated Total Cost: $12,000,000

L Transit Stop | Transit Stop
Project Term: Mid-term

Typical Section
4-Lane Divided (Raised Median - Narrow) with Curb & Gutter and Sidepath

|

[+t R Made with Streetmix

Total ROW: 110 feet



Jones Dairy Road Extension °

Jones Dairy Rd/Averette Rd to US 401 BUS (Main St)/Pulley Town Rd

Project Description

The Jones Dairy Rd extension is a recommendation that
fall in the mid-term (10-20 years) time frame based

on project prioritization; however, with developer
investment, the road can be constructed more
opportunistically in the near term. The extension will
provide connectivity between Averette Rd/Young St and
US 401 BUS (Main St) for pedestrians. The new road will
provide enhanced connection between residential areas.

LLand Use Considerations

The environmental considerations of the Jones Dairy Rd
extension are considerable. While there are a number
of streams and ponds in the area there is also the Little
River Watershed. The environmental considerations
should be further studied before construction phase.

At a Glance

Existing Number of Lanes: ~ New Road

Proposed Number of Lanes: 2

Length: 1.81 miles
Estimated Total Cost: $7,500,000*
Project Term: Mid-term

Typical Section

2-Lane Undivided with Paved Shoulders and Sidewalks

T e

Total ROW: 90 feet

]
]

i

|

:

H

|

H

— 1
.

A AVERETTE Rp

Existing Facilities Planned Facilities

1 Sidewalk Sidewalk

|| Bike Lane || BikeLane

|:| Shared-Use Path |:| Shared-Use Path
L Transit Stop | Transit Stop
= i\

Made with Streetmix

*portions to be built by development in the near term.

Fowler Road Extension

US 401 BYP/US 401 BUS (Main St) to Rolesville Rd

Project Description

The Fowler Rd extension project has the potential

to streamline transportation and land use. The new
connection would provide multimodal facilities in
southern Rolesville for pedestrians and cyclists. Upon
adoption of the Rolesville Moves CTP, the Town should
pursue a feasibility study or small area plan for the area
along the potential Fowler Rd extension.

[Land Use Considerations

While the current land use in the area is rural-
residential, the future land use entertains the idea

of an employment center. The employment center
should encourage walkable and bikeable spaces that
are supported by restaurants and retail of surrounding
mixed use land uses.

At a Glance

Existing Number of Lanes:  New Road

Proposed Number of Lanes: 4

Length: 2.58 miles
Estimated Total Cost: $44,500,000
Project Term: Mid-term

Typical Section

i V74
BU/? ’/ A\ ! P
LSRD :r\l y’ :’-‘-_--—--";-.I\ o'/"/
T B / oy
= - & o
N I £ AL
AVl Loy | - AN
ey | - A=
! L. i acall . e
R ~.! R4 1o Lo
{ g c -
e L A
,_—//' ! BES '//0/ | @
> | ’ La—a
e l - i
B I
=N TR
L--_--I - — E—_—
s}
(23
—d —"é"u-
l.i Ny
by
i~ . &
i .
o -—— “v
| :I
———————— -
MITCHELL MILL RD

Existing Facilities Planned Facilities

|1 Sidewalk Sidewalk

|| Bike Lane Bike Lane

|:| Shared-Use Path |:| Shared-Use Path
L Transit Stop | Transit Stop

4-Lane Divided (Raised Median - Narrow) with Curb & Gutter, Bike Lanes, and Sidewalk

5 mm mm

V =

Total ROW: 110 feet

F?eturn to Agenda

Made with Streetmix



FEBRUARY 2021

sRolesville  peveLopmeNT

|

|
B |
.|

HIGHLIGHTS

1. MA 21-01 Town of Rolesville to Rezone 49.23 acres located on
West Young Street from Residential (R1), Downtown
Commercial (C), Downtown Commercial Conditional Zoning (C-
CZ), and Industrial (1) Zoning Districts to Town Center (TC)
Zoning District — APPROVED

2. MA 21-02 Town of Rolesville to Rezone 116.296 acres located at
11624 Louisburg Road, recently annexed into the Rolesville Town
Limits, to Residential 40 Watershed (R40W) Zoning District.-
APPROVED

For more information or assistance,

Please contact:

Shelly Raby, Planning Development Specialist
Phone: 919-554-6517
shelly.raby@rolesville.nc.gov

The Town of Rolesville is committed to providing accessible facilities, programs and services
for all people in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Should you need
assistance or a particular accommodation please contact the ADA Coordinator.




Developments

CURRENT RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENTS WITH PERMITS ISSUED
Summary of Activity by Subdivision

Total Total Un-permitted Permits Permits
Buildable Permits Issued Lots Issued in Issued
Subdivision Lots Per Development Remaining February YTD
Averette Ridge 159 148 11 1 3
Carlton Pointe 271 265 06 5 4
Ellngeth 89 89
Springs
Granite Falls 101 88 o5 5 8
Perry Farms 74 40 1
Stonewater 208 195 13 5 6
Willoughby 88 84 4 4 5
TOTAL 990 820 149 11 26
Barrington
Townhomes 32 15 09 4
Eliz. Springs 98 98
Townhomes
TOTAL 130 15 118
Total
Residential 1120 835 261 11 30

Permits Issued




2020 vs 2021

60

50
40
30
20

10
0

New Single-Family New Townhomes Certificate of Occupancy  All Permit Types Issued
Dwellings

e F@D-2020 em——ys e=—Feb 2021

The Town of Rolesville has experienced an overall increase in permitting activity compared
to this time last year.

Permits Issued in the last 6 months

140
122
120
100 90
80 79
66 65 62
60
40
40 25 24, 24
19 18 217721 1 1 18
20 o I1112 16 II 18 I 10 17 12 164 165158 4 S 1310
i 1 ] I
o LMual HoMNRR wolzanl ZoMMand BiNMaHD soBimn
Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan-21 Feb-21
m New Single-Family Dwellings m New Townhomes
u Certificate of Occupancy m Certificates of Completion/Compliance

m Residential Alterations& Accessory  mTrade

m All Permits




Development Projects Summary

Detailed information regarding these projects can be found by clicking on the link provided
https://www.rolesvillenc.gov/planning/development-projects

Commercial/ Other

Carlton Pointe Green Way Trail Rolesville CrossFit C4 Investments
101 and 115 Redford Place Drive 1200 Granite Falls Blvd. 515 S. Main St.
Carolina Legacy Volleyball Rural Fire Dept. Addition

Residential
A-Master Team Townhomes - 47 New Townhomes

Chandlers Ridge- 90 New Single-Family Homes

Elizabeth Springs- 89 New Single-Family Homes & 98 New Townhomes

Kalas Falls- 484 New Single-Family Homes & 108 New Townhomes

Perry Farms Phase 2- 33 New Single-Family Homes

Preserve at Jones Dairy Road Central- 261 New Single-Family Homes & 173 New Townhomes
Preserve at Jones Dairy Road North- 141 New Single-Family Homes & 65 New Townhomes
Preserve at Jones Dairy Road South- 221 New Single-Family Homes

Regency at Heritage- 27 New Single-Family Homes

The Point- 483 New Single-Family Homes & 324 New Townhomes

The Townes at Carlton Pointe- 53 New Townhomes

Hopper Community — 177 New Single-Family Homes & 120 New Townhomes

PROJECTS BY THE NUMBERS

& Proposed New Single-Family Homes & Proposed New Townhomes
600 484
500 =
400 =
300 = 261 s 221
200 90 8998 =108 E. . =
100 A == == 3o = = =
0 = = = = =
Q" ¢ S @ & & &
A I LT AV SRS
& & (\%Q fz}(b% Q¢ & @eo <
@rb% & N N & 2 & Q,GQJ o
e L £ O S
O Q>\ @6 QQ Q\QJ QQ)
& ¢ Q¢



https://www.rolesvillenc.gov/planning/development-projects

	Item 3.0 CTP PL_PB_Memo_20210318.pdf
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	Item 4 February 2021 Activity Development Report.pdf
	CURRENT RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENTS WITH PERMITS ISSUED
	Subdivision
	Barrington Townhomes
	Eliz. Springs Townhomes
	98
	98
	TOTAL

	Item 2.0 PB_Minutes_20210315.pdf
	ITEM TOPIC




